

05154100-0510 22251541-0505 MARIC INACTIVE

March 31, 2002

Commonwealth of Kentucky Public Service Commission 211 Sower Boulevard PO Box 615 Frankfort, KY 40602-0615

RE: TOTALink of Kentucky, LLC c/o Utilicom Network LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038-3159

Dear Director:

TOTALink of Kentucky, LLC is a non-operating company which has never had revenues nor employees, and that is registered in your state.

Please advise us as to the proper procedure to dissolve the company and cease our registration.

Very truly yours,

Michael Shuipis

Vice President and Controller Utilicom Networks LLC

> 124 Grove Street • Suite 220 • Franklin, Massachusetts 02038-3195 Phone: (508) 553-7000 • Fax: (508) 553-7100 • www.utilicomnetworks.com

TOTALink of Kentucky, LLC

.

يە م

Access Services

1 Title Page – Section 3

REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF INTRASTATE CHARGES

APPLYING TO COMMUNICATIONS ACCESS SERVICES

WITHIN THE STATE OF KENTUCKY

This tariff applies to the intrastate charges applying to access telecommunications services furnished by TOTALink of Kentucky, LLC ("Carrier") between one or more points within the State of Kentucky. This tariff is on file with the Kentucky Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours at Carrier's principal place of business, 124 Grove Street, Suite 220, Franklin, MA 02038.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through 211 inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Origina and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION	<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION
1	Original	26	Original
2	Original	27	Original
3	Original	28	Original
4	Original	29	Original
5	Original	30	Original
6	Original	31	Original
7	Original	32	Original
8	Original	33	Original
9	Original	34	Original
10	Original	35	Original
11	Original	36	Original
12	Original	37	Original
13	Original	38	Original
14	Original	39	Original
15	Original	40	Original
16	Original	41	Original
17	Original	42	Original
18	Original	43	Original
19	Original	44	Original
20	Original	45	Original
21	Original	46	Original
22	Original	47	Original
23	Original	48	Original
24	Original	49	Original
25	Original	50	Original

* Indicates New or Revised Sheet

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

BY Stephant Buy SECRETARE GGIE DOGIMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

CHECK SHEET (Cont'd)

<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION	<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION
51	Original	76	Original
52	Original	77	Original
53	Original	78	Original
54	Original	79	Original
55	Original	80	Original
56	Original	81	Original
57	Original	82	Original
58	Original	83	Original
59	Original	84	Original
60	Original	85	Original
61	Original	86	Original
62	Original	87	Original
63	Original	88	Original
64	Original	89	Original
65	Original	90	Original
66	Original	91	Original
67	Original	92	Original
68	Original	93	Original
69	Original	94	Original
70	Original	95	Original
71	Original	96	Original
72	Original	97	Original
73	Original	98	Original
74	Original	99	Original
75	Original	100	Original

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi · President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA ()2038

CHE CK SHEET (Cont'd)

<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION	<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION
101	Original	106	Original
101	Original	126	Original
102	Original	127	Original
103	Original	128	Original
104	Original	129	Original
105	Original	130	Original
106	Original	131	Original
107	Original	132	Original
108	Original	133	Original
109	Original	134	Original
110	Original	135	Original
111	Original	136	Original
112	Original	137	Original
113	Original	138	Original
114	Original	139	Original
115	Original	140	Original
116	Original	141	Original
117	Original	142	Original
118	Original	143	Original
119	Original	144	Original
120	Original	145	Original
121	Original	146	Original
122	Original	147	Original
123	Original	148	Original
124	Original	149	Original
125	Original	150	Original
	~		-

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
SSUED:		EFFECTIVE EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
SUED BY:	Michael Angi President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY: Stoppand DU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

CHECK SHEET (Cont'd)

<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION	SHEET	REVISION
151	Original	176	Original
152	Original	177	Original
153	Original	178	Original
154	Original	179	Original
155	Original	180	Original
156	Original	181	Original
157	Original	182	Original
158	Original	183	Original
159	Original	184	Original
160	Original	185	Original
161	Original	186	Original
	Original	187	Original
162 163	Original	188	Original
	-	189	Original
164	Original	190	
165	Original	191	Original
166	Original	191	Original
167	Original		Original
168	Original	193 194	Original
169	Original		Original
170	Original	195	Original
171	Original	196	Original
172	Original	197	Original
173	Original	198	Original
174	Original	199	Original
175	Original	200	Original

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand BLU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

 $\widehat{}$

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

CHECK SHEET (Cont'd)

<u>SHEET</u>	REVISION
201 202 203 204 205 206 207 208 209 210 211	Original Original Original Original Original Original Original Original Original Original

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT 10 007 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BV: Stephan Buy

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sheet

Check Sheet1
Table of Contents
Concurring Carriers
Connecting Carriers
Other Participating Carriers
Explanation of Symbols8
Definitions9
1 – Application of Tariff
2 - Rules And Regulations
3 – Ordering Options for Switched Access Services
4 - Switched Access Service
5 - Dedicated Services Descriptions and Technical Standards
6 – Carrier Common Line Access Service
7 – Interstate Access Service
8 - Special Arrangements
9 - Reciprocal Compensation Arrangements
10 – Additional Engineering, Etc
11 – Interconnection Services
12 - Description and Application of Rates & Charges210

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

> PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephan Buy

CONCURRING CARRIERS

- - -

None

CONNECTING CARRIERS

None

OTHER PARTICIPATING CARRIERS

None

		PUB	LIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY:	SUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) Stephan BLU CRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

The following symbols shall be used in this tariff for the purpose indicated below:

- (C) To signify changed acministrative regulation.
- (D) To signify discontinued rate, administrative regulation or test.
- (I) To signify increase.
- (N) To signify new rate and/or new test.
- (R) To signify reduction.
- (T) To signify a change ir text.

			SIGN
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE	
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President	JUL 10 2000	
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:0 SECTION 9 (1) BV: Stephand Buy)11,
	,	SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSIO	ON

DEFINITIONS

ACCESS CODE - A uniform five or seven digit code assigned by the Company to an individual customer. The five-digit code has the form 10XXX, and the seven-digit code has the form 10XXXX and 950-XXXX.

ACCESS MINUTES - That usage of exchange facilities in interstate or Foreign Service, which is used to calculate chargeable usage. On the originating end of an interstate or foreign call, usage is measured from the time the originating end user's call is delivered by the Company to and acknowledged as received by the custor er's facilities connected with the originating exchange. On the terminating end of an interstate or toreign call, usage is measured from the time the call is received by the end user in the terminating exchange. Timing of usage at both originating and terminating ends of an interstate or foreign call shall terminate when the calling or called party disconnects, whichever event is recognized first in the originating and terminating exchanges, as applicable.

ACCESS TANDEM - A Company switching system that provides a concentration and distribution function for originating or terminating tratfic between end offices and a customer's premises.

ACCESS TRANSPORT - An SS7 parameter, which is used to transport ISDN user information transparently (i.e., the Company switch does not use the Access Transport Parameter data) across the network.

ALTERNATE ACCESS TANDEM - An a cess tandem owned by a party other than the Company.

AUTOMATIC NUMBER IDENTIFICATION - A multi-frequency signaling common switching optional feature # that provides the automatic transmission of a seven or ten digit number and information digits to the customer's premises for call originating in the LATA, to identify the calling station. Additional information indicator digits are available with the chargeable optional feature flex ANI.

BASIC INITIAL ADDRESS MESSAGE DELIVERY - A common switching optional feature where an SS7 message sent in the forward direction to initiate trunk set up with the busying of an outgoing trunk that carries the information about that trunk along with other information relating to the routing and handling of the call to the next switch.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> > JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 EFFECTIVEURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane But SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

BASIC SERVICE ARRANGEMENT (BSA) - A BSA encompasses both the hierarchical nature of network capabilities and the technical requirements for the delivery of unbundled network features and functions to enhanced service providers. It constitutes the minimum necessary arrangement for the delivery of these unbundled features and functions.

The BSA is comprised of three elements. The access link transports and features and functions. The access link consists of facilities us ed to connect a customer's designated premises to the serving wire center of that premises. This element contains the attributes inherent in the connection of a customer's designated premises to the point of network interconnection. It will have alternative characteristics which can be selected by the customer, but one of which is necessary for communications transfer (e.g., 2-wire or 4-wire facilities). The customer serving wire center or a distant central office. It includes the routir g and processing capabilities associated with the provision of end-to-end communications.

The transport element is the connection between central offices, such as serving wire center to another central office, where access to features and functions or end users id required. When the customer and end user are served from the same serving office, the transport element consists of an intra-office connection.

BASIC SERVICE ELEMENT (BSE) - A BSE is an optional and unbundled network feature associated with a BSA. These features are specifically determined and developed based on the needs of enhanced service providers for use in provision of enhanced services, as defined in Amendment of Part 69 of the Commission's Rules, although they may be used by an interstate customer.

BILLED NUMBER GROUP - The NPA-NXX and/or RAO-0/1XX administered by the data owner.

BILLED NUMBER SCREENIING (BNS) · Data stored in the Company's lie information Data Base stating whether the billed line automatically rejects, accepts, or requires verification of calls billed as collect or third number. Billed number screening also identifies local exchange Company public and non-working telephone numbers and indicates whether a central office code is active or vacant.

CALLING PARTY NUMBER - An SS7 parameter identifying the directory number of the calling station.

CARRIER IDENTIFICATION CODE - A numeric code currently used to identify customers who purchase trunk switched Access Services. These codes are primarily used for routing from the Company's network to the access purchaser and for billing between the Company and the access purchaser.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 EFFECTIVE PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

CARRIER SELECTION INDICATOR - Ar SS7 parameter which identifies whether the originating line was pre-subscribed or not, and if the line was pre-subscribed, whether the end user dialed 10XXX or 101XXXX, did not dial 10XXX or 101XXXX, or if no indication of dialing is available.

CCS - A hundred call seconds, which is a standard unit of traffic load that is equal to 100 seconds of usage or capacity of a group of servers (e.g., trunks).

CENTRAL OFFICE - A local Company switching system where telephone exchange service customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and to trunks.

CENTRAL OFFICE PREFIX - The first three digits (NXX) of the seven digit telephone number assigned to a customer's or customer's ond user's Telephone Exchange Service.

COMMISSION - The Commission shall mean and refer to the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

COMMON CHANNEL SIGNALING NET /VORK - A digital data network carrying signaling, routing, and control information, which interfaces with the voice/data network.

COMMON LINE - A line, trunk, pay telephone line or other facility provided under the general and/or local exchange service tariffs of the Company, terminated on a central office switch. A common line-residence is a line or trunk provided under the residence regulations of the general and/or local exchange service tariffs. A common line business is a line provided under the business regulations of the general and/or local exchange service tariffs.

The listing of each message and/or rate element for which charges to a customer are due on a bill prepared by the Company.

END OFFICE SWITCH - A local Company switching system where Telephone Exchange Service customer station loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to trunks. Included are Remote Switching Modules and Remote Switching Systems served by a host office in a different wire center.

END USER - Any customer of an interstate or foreign telecommunications service that is not a carrier, except that a carrier other than a telephone company shall be deemed to be an "end user" when such carrier uses a telecommunications service for administrative purposes, and a person or entity that offers telecommunications services exclusively as a reseller shall be deemed to be an "end user" if all resale transmissions offered ty such reseller originate on the premises of such reseller.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> BU

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

ENTRANCE FACILITY - A Switched Transport facility that provides dedicated transport from the customer's point of termination to the Company serving wire center.

ENTRY SWITCH - See first point of switching.

EXCHANGE - A unit generally smaller than a local access and transport area, established by the Company for the administration of communications service in a specified area, which usually embraces a city, town, or village and its environs. It consists of one or more central offices together with the associated facilities used in furnishing communications service within that area. One or more designated exchanges comprise a given local access and transport area.

EXCHANGE TERMINATION - A PSN network component linking the access line and port termination.

FIELD IDENTIFIER - Two or four characters that are used on service orders to convey specific instructions. Field identifiers may or may not have associated data. Selected Field identifiers are used in Company billing systems to generate non-recurring charges.

FLEXIBLE AUTOMATIC NUMBER IDENTIFICATION (Flexible ANI) - A common switching optional feature that provides additional values for the information indicator digits available with the ANI feature on originating calls. These additional digits are used for routing and billing purposes.

INTEREXCHANGE CARRIER (IC) OR INTEREXCHANGE COMMON CARRIER - Any individual, partnership, association, joint-stock company, trust, governmental entity or corporation engaged for hire in interstate or foreign communication by wire or radio, between two or more exchanges.

INTERSTATE COMMUNICATIONS - Both interstate and foreign communications.

INTRASTATE COMMUNICATIONS - Ar y communications within a state subject to oversight by a state regulatory commission as provided by the laws of the state involved.

LINE INFORMATION DATA BASE (LIDI3) - A database used to validate local exchange company calling card numbers or obtain billed number screening data.

LOCAL CALLING AREA - A geographical area, as defined in the Company's local and/or general exchange service tariff, in which an erd user (Telephone Exchange Service Subscriber) may complete a call without incurring MTS charges.

LOCAL ACCESS AND TRANSPORT AR A (LATA) - A geographic area established for the provision and administration of communications service. It encompasses one or more designated exchanges, which are grouped to serve common social, economic and other purposes.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION	
OF KENTUCKY	
EFFECTIVE	

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BUY

EFFECTIVE:

LOCAL ROUTING NUMBER (LRN) - A 10-digit number used to uniquely identify a switch that has ported numbers.

LOCAL TANDEM SWITCH - A local Company switching unit by which local or access telephonic communications are switched to and from an End Office Switch.

MESESAGE - A "Call" as defined preceding.

NETWORK INTERFACE - The point of ir terconnection between Company communications facilities and terminal equipment, protective apparatus or wiring at a subscriber's premises. The network interface or demarcation point shall be located on the subscriber's side of the Company's protector, or the equivalent thereof in cases where a protector is not employed, as provided under the local Company's reasonable and non discriminatory standard operating practices.

NETWORK CONTROL SIGNALING - The transmission of signals used in the telecommunications system which perform functions such as supervision (control, status, and charge signals), address signaling (e.g., dialing), calling and called number identifications, rate of flow, service selection error control and audible tone signals (call procress signals indicating re-order or busy conditions, alerting, coin denominations, coin collect and coin return tones) to control the operation of the telecommunications system.

ORIGINATING DIRECTION - The use of access service for the origination of calls from an End User premises to a customer premises.

ORIGINATING POINT CODE - A field within a signaling message that identifies the originating network signaling node.

PERCENTAGE FOR INTERSATE USE (PIU) - An Interstate jurisdictional use of an access service as reported by the customer. This percentage is stated as a whole number percentage (either 0 or 100 percent for special access, and a number of 0 through 100 percent for switched access) which is the customer's best estimate of the percentage of the total use of the service that will be interstate in nature.

POINT OF TERMINATION - The point of demarcation within a customer-designated premises at which the Company's responsibility for the provision of access service ends.

PORT TERMINATION - An interface on the PAD or packet switch that provides an entry point into the PSN.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
EFFECTIVE: SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Bul
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220

RECIPIENT SWITCH - Denotes any enc office switch that serves Directory Numbers (DN) within a number portable NXX that is not originally assigned to the switch. Customers assigned a DN within the indicated NXX that were working out of a switch other than the one originally designated are said to have ported their number to this recipient switch.

SERVICE CODE - An SS7 parameter that allows individual calls to be identified and routed based on specific service characteristics.

SERVICE CONTROL POINT - A centralized database which contains Common Channel Signaling System 7 service data. The SCP is divided into a database node and it's associated databases. The SCP contains the Line information Database.

SERVICE INTERFACE - Is that point of termination where all tariffed technical/physical parameters are defined. The Service Interface is located at the Network Interface or may be extended at the customer's request.

SERVICE SWITCHING POINT - An enc office or tandem switch equipped with the signaling link hardware and software that can perform the Signal Point functions. In addition, SSP's can identify the need for application software in processing a Common Channel Signaling System 7 call and request and respond to call processing instructions issued by a Service Control Point.

SERVING WIRE CENTER - The central office in the wire center building, which would normally serve the customer location with basic service.

SIGNAL POINT - An end office tandem switch equipped with signaling link hardware and software that can perform trunk-signaling (call set up).

SIGNAL TRANSFER POINT - A specialized packet switch that routes and translates signaling messages in the Common Channel Signaling network.

SIGNALIING SYSTEM SEVEN (SS7) - The layered protocol used for standardized Common Channel Signaling in the United States.

SUBTENDING END OFFICE OF AN ACCESS TANDEM - An end office that has final trunk group routing through the tandem.

SYNCHRONOUS TRANSPORT SIGNA.. (STS-1) - A 51.84 Mbps signal within a SONET optical carrier signal. The STS-1 signal consists of overhead and synchronous payload envelope (SPE). The overhead part of the signal is used for controlling, framing, and maintaining the signal. The SPE is used to transport the customer's data.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 EFFECTIVE: SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Bus SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

TANDEM SWITCHED TRANSPORT - Switched Transport provided between the customer's serving wire center and end offices that subtend the tandem or between an access tandem and end offices that subtend the tandem. Tandem-Switched Transport is switched at a tandem switch. Tandem-Switched Transport consists of circuits dedicated to the use of a single customer from the serving wire center to the tandem and circuits used in common by many customers from the tandem to the end office.

TANDEM SWITCHED TRANSPORT FACILITY - A Switched Access transport facility used for Tandem-Switched Transport.

TERMINATING DIRECTION - The use of Access Service for the completion of calls from a customer premises to an End User premises.

TERMINUS HUB - Denotes a wire center where multiplexing option is available for Direct High Capacity Services (e.g., DS1), such that individual channels (e.g., VG) are terminated at customer designated premises served by that wire center.

TRANSIT NETWORK SELECTION - An SS7 parameter whose purpose is to indicate to an intermediate node or a network what carrier and circuit group is to be selected.

TRANSMISSION NODE - Denotes a location in a Company central office served by a customer's fiber optic cable or microwave facilities.

TRANSMISSION PATH - An electrical path capable of transmitting signals within the range of the service offering, e.g., a Direct Analog Service transmission path is capable of transmitting voice frequencies within the approximate range 300 to 3000 Hz. A transmission path is comprised of physical or derived channels consisting cf any form or configuration of facilities typically used in the telecommunications industry.

TRUNK - A communications path connecting two switching systems in a network, used in the establishment of an end-to-end connection.

TRUNK GROUP - A set of trunks, which are traffic, engineered as a unit for the establishment of connections between switching systems in which all of the communications paths are interchangeable.

V & H COORDINATES METHOD - A method of computing airline miles between two points by utilizing an established formula which is based on the vertical and horizontal coordinates of the two points.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 EFFECTIVE: SECTION 9 (1) BV Stephan() BU SECPETARY OF THE COMMISSION

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

WIRE CENTER - A building in which one or more central offices, used for the provision of Telephone Exchange Services, are located.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephand</u> BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 EFFECTIVE:

1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

1.1 General

- 1.1.1 This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to intrastate access telecommunications services provided by Carrier for telecommunications between points within the State of Kentucky. Carrier's services are furnished subject to the availability of facilities and subject to the terms and conditions of this tariff.
- 1.1.2 The rates and regulations contained in this tariff apply only to the services furnished by Carrier and do not apply, unless otherwise specified, to the lines, facilities, or services provided by another common carrier for use in accessing the services of Carrier.
- 1.1.3 The Subscriber is entitled to limit the use of Carrier's services by Users at the Subscriber's facilities, and may use other common carriers in addition to or in lieu of Carrier.
- 1.1.4 At the option of the Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet specialized requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff as approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. The terms of each contract shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include discounts off of rates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges for specially designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general service offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or terminating access, mixture of services or other distinguishing features. Service shall be available to all similarly situated Customers for a fixed per od of time following the initial offering for the first contract Customer as specific in each individual contract.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephant</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 EFFECTIVE:

2. – RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

- 2.1.1 The Company is a facilities-based telecommunications services provider and undertakes to furnish intrastate and interstate access telecommunications service pursuant to the terms of this tariff for their direct transmission and reception of voice, data and other types of telecommunications services to points originating and or terminating within the State of Kentucky.
- 2.1.2 The Company's services are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-'our (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.
- 2.1.3 Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least one (1) month, unless provided for otherwise pursuant to this Tariff. For the purpose of computing any charge in this Tariff, a month is considered to have thirty (30) days.
- 2.1.4 Rates
 - Α. The Company reserves the right to change rates and charges at any time subject to regulatory requirements of the Commission by filing a revised rate with the Commiss on and complying with other applicable laws.
 - Β. Individual written notice to Customers of rate changes shall be made in accordance with Commission regulations. Where there are not regulations, notification will be made in a manner appropriate to the circumstances involved.
 - C. A rate shall not be changed unless it has been in effect for at least thirty (30) days.
- 2.1.5 Requests for Service under this Tariff will authorize the Company to conduct a credit search on the Customer. The Company reserves the right to refuse service on the basis of credit history, and to refuse further service due to late payment or nonpayment by the Customer. The Company may also, at any time and at its sole discretion, set a credit limit for any Customer's consumption of services for any monthly period.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) tephant) BW EFFECTIVE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

2.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (Cont'd)

- 2.1.6 The Company may suspend or terminate services for the nonpayment of charges or for other violations of this tariff. The Company also reserves the right to refuse an application for service made by a present or former customer who is indebted to the Company for service previously rendered pursuant to this Tariff until the indebtedness is satisfied.
- 2.1.7 Customers may be required to enter into written Service Order which shall contain or reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged, the duration of the services, and the terms and conditions in this Tariff. Customers will also be required to execute any other documents as may be reasonable requested by the Compar y.
- 2.1.8 At the expiration of the initial term specified in each Service Order, or in any extension thereof, service shall continue on a month-to-month basis at the then current rates unless terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days' written notice. Any termination shall not relieve Customer of its obligation to pay any charges incurred under the service order and this tariff prior to termination. The rights and obligations, which by their nature extend beyond the termination of the term, of the service order shall survive such termination.
- 2.1.9 The Company will use reasonable efforts to make available services to a Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of, and compliance by the Customer with, the regulations contained in this Tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by such date and will not be liable for any delays in commencing service to any customer.
- 2.1.10 If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment specification, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially modifies any provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation fee shall be acjusted accordingly.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1)

EFFECTIVE CRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

2.1 <u>Undertaking of the Company</u> (Cont'd)

2.1.11 The Company will attempt to provide the Customer reasonable notification of serviceaffecting activities that may occur in normal operation of its business. Such activities may include, but are not imited to, equipment or facilities additions, removals or rearrangements and routing preventative maintenance. Generally, such activities are not specific to an individual Customer but affect many Customers' services. No specific advance notification period is applicable to all service activities. The Company will work cooperatively with the Customer to determine the reasonable notification requirements. With some emergency or unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an cutage resulting from cable damage, notification to the Customer may not be possible.

2.2 Limitations

- 2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the provisions of this Tariff. The Company is responsible under this tariff only for the services and facilities provided hereunder, and it assumes no responsibility for any service provided by any other entity that purchases access to the Company's facilities in order to originate or terminate its own services, or to communicate with its own customers.
- 2.2.2 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connection.
- 2.2.3 A user may transmit or receive information or signals via the facilities of the Company. The Company's services are designated primarily as set forth in Section 2.1.1, except as otherwise stated in this tariff. A Customer may transmit any form of signal that is compatible with the Company's facilities, but the Company does not guarantee that its services will be suitable for purposes other than as stated in the previous sentence, except as specifically stated in this Tariff. A Customer's ability to connect equipment or facilities to the Company's facilities is subject to any restrictions set forth in the approved Tariff of the underlying service provider.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011,
SECTION 9 (1)
BY Stephand Bul
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 2.2 Limitations (Cont'd)
 - 2.2.4 Equipment and Facilities
 - A. The furnishing of service under this Tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.
 - B. The Company's obligation to furnish facilities and service is dependent upon its ability (a) to secure and retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable facilities and rights for the construction and maintenance of the necessary circuits and equipment; (b) to secure and retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable space for its plant and facilities in the building where service is or will be provided to the Customer; or (c) to secure reimbursement of all costs where the owner or operator of a building demands relocation or rearrangement of plant and facilities used in providing service therein.
 - C. The Company shall not be required to furnish, or continue to furnish, facilities or service where the circumstances are such that the proposed use of the facilities or service would tend to adversely affect the Company's plant, property or service.
 - D. The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or of add tional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack of facilities, or due to some other cause beyond the Company's control.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 2.2 Limitations (Cont'd)
 - E. Inspections
 - 1 Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may take such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in Section 2.2.4.E.2 for the installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and equipment to Company-owned facilities.
 - 2 If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take this corrective action and notify the Company of the action taken. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, and personnel from harm.
 - 2.2.5 The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine whether the terms and conditions of this Tariff are being compiled with the installation, operation or maintenance of the Customer's or the Company's facilities or equipment.
 - 2.2.6 The Customer obtains no property right or interest in the use of any specific type of facility, service, equipment, telephone number, process or code. All rights, titles and interests remain, at all times, solely with the Company.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
		JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:		
	Michael Angi - President	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street Suite 220	BY Stephand BUY
	Franklin, MA 02038	SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.3 Use of Services

- 2.3.1 Customers shall not use the Services provided under this Tariff for any unlawful purpose. Services may otherwise be used for any lawful purpose, provided that the such purpose is a purpose for which the Customer is technically suited, the Customer shall have obtained all required government approvals, authorizations, licenses consents and permits; and such purpose is consistent with the transmission and switching parameters of the telecommunications facilities utilized in the provision of services.
- 2.3.2 The Company's equipment, apparatus, channels and lines shall be carefully used. Equipment furnished by the Company shall remain its property and shall be returned to the Company whenever requested, within a reasonable period following the request, in good condition, reasonable wear and tear accepted. The customer is required to reimburse the Company for any loss of, or damage to, the facilities or equipment on the customer's premises, including loss or damage caused by agents, employees or independent contractors of the customer through any negligence.
- 2.3.3 Maintaining of Equipment and Facilities
 - A. The Company shall use reasonable efforts to maintain only the facilities that it furnishes to the Customer. The Customer may not, nor may Customer permit others to, rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or otherwise interfere with any of the facilities provided by the Company, except upon the written consent of the Company.
 - B. The Company may substitute, change or rearrange any facility at any time and from time to time, but shall not thereby alter the technical parameters of the service provided the Customer.
 - C. The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges as set forth herein fc r visits by the Company's agents or employees to the Premises of the Customer when the service difficulty or trouble report results form the use of equipment or facilities provided by any party other than the Company, includir g but not limited to the Customer.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2.3 <u>Use of Service</u> (Cont'd)

- 2.3.3 Maintaining of Equipment and Facilities (Cont'd)
 - D. The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, or maintenance of ar y Customer provided communications equipment. Where such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered under this Tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities. Subject to his responsibility, the Company shall not be responsible for:
 - 1. The transmission of signals by customer provided equipment or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission; or
 - 2. the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment;
 - 3. network control signaling when performed by Customer-provided network control signaling equipment.
 - E. At the request of the Customer, installation or maintenance may be performed outside of the Company's regular business hours or in hazardous location. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material or other costs incurred by or charged by the Company will apply. If installation or maintenance is started during regular business hours, but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays and or night hours, additional charges may apply.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: SECTION 9 (1)
BY: Stephand Bue
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

2.3 <u>Use of Service</u> (Cont'd)

- 2.3.4 Additional Responsibilities for Customer-provided terminal equipment
 - A Facilities furnished under this tariff may be connected to customer provided terminal equipmer t in accordance with the provisions of this tariff. All such termination equipment shall be registered by the Federal Communications Commission pursuant to Party 68 of Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations; and all User-provided wiring shall be installed and maintained in compliance with those regulations.
 - B. The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided terminal equipment connected to Company facilities is compatible with such facilities. The magnitude ar d character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-provided equipment and writing by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's employees or to other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.
 - C. Terminal Equipment used on the User's Premises and the electric power consumed by such equipment shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the Customer. The Customer is responsible for the provision of wiring or cable to connect its equipment to Company facilities. Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities of the Company Used for furnishing Communications Services and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall also be provided at the Customer's expense.
 - D. Communications Services may be connected to the services or facilities of other communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs of the other communications carriers which are applicable such connections.
 - E. Users may interconnect communications facilities that are used in whole or in part for interstate communications to services provided under this tariff only to the extent that the user is an "end user" as defined in Section 69.2(m), Title 47, Code of Federal Regulations.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVESUANT TO SO7 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 2.3 <u>Use of Service</u> (Cont'd)
 - 2.3.5 Resale and Assignment
 - A. Any service provided under this Tariff may be resold to or shared (jointly used) with other persons at the customer's option. The customer remains solely responsible for all use of service ordered by it or billed to its telephone number(s) pursuant to this Tariff, for determining who is authorized to use its service, and for promptly notifying the Company of any unauthorized use. The customer may advise its customers that the Company provides a portion of its service, but the customer shall not represent that the Company jointly participates with the customer in the provision of the service.
 - B. A Customer, joint user, or authorized user may not assign, or transfer in any manner, the service or any rights associated with the service without the written consent of the Company. The Company will permit a Customer to assign or transfer its existing service to another entity provided, that the existing Customer has paid all charges owed by it to the Company for regulated communications services and such permitted assigned or transferee accepts and agrees to be bound by all regulations and conditions contained in this ``ariff, as well as all other conditions of Service. Such a transfer will be treated as a disconnection of existing service and installation of new service, and non-recurring installation charges as stated in this tariff will apply.
 - C. The Company may require applications for service who intend to use the Company's offerings for resale and or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and Commission regulations, policies, orders and decisions.
 - 2.3.6 The name(s) of the Customer(s) desiring to use the service must be set forth in the application for service.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

2.3 Use of Service (Cont'd)

- 2.3.7 The Company strictly prohibits use of the Company's services without payment or an avoidance of payment by the Customer by fraudulent means, devices or schemes including providing falsified calling card numbers or invalid calling card numbers to the Company, providing falsified or invalid credit card number to the Company or in any way misrepresenting the identity of the Customer.
- 2.3.8 Recording of telephone conversations of service provided by the Company under this Tariff is prohibited except as authorized by applicable federal, state and local laws.
- 2.3.9 Service will not be used in a manner which might be reasonably be expect to frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another or in any manner interferes with other person(s) in the use of their service, prevents other persons from using their service or otherwise impairs the cuality of service to other Customers.
- 2.3.10 The customer is responsible for notifying the Company immediately of any unauthorized use of services.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street. Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Bus SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.4 Liability of the Company

- 2.4.1 The liability of the Compary for damages, resulting in whole or in part from or arising out of or in connection with the furnishing of services under this tariff or the failure to furnish the Service, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or other defects, and representations, shall be limited to the extension of allowances for the interruption as set forth in this Tariff. The extension of such allowances for interruption shall be the sole remedy of the Customer and the sole liability of the Company.
- 2.4.2 The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or of any other government, including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of any Commission, agency, Commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or of any civil or military authority; national emergencies; insurrections; riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties; or notwithstancing anything in this Tariff to the contrary, the unlawful acts of the Company's agents and employees, if committed beyond the scope of their employment.
- 2.4.3 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any entity furnishing to the Company or to the Company's Customers facilities or equipment used for or with the services the Company offers. The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses due to the fault or negligence of the Customer or due to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or facilities.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE	

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephani Bey SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)
 - 2.4.4 Indemnity, Generally
 - A. The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer from and against any and all claims, loss, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, including attorney fees, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons (including claims for payments made under Worker's Compensation law or under any plan for employee disability or death benefits), and for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, including environmental contamination, whether owned by the Customer or by any other party, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, presence, condition, location, use or removal of any equipment or facilities or the service.
 - B. The Company reserves the right to require each Customer to sign an agreement acknowledging acceptance of the provisions of this section 2.4.4 as a condition precedent to such installations.
 - 2.4.5 Indemnities in respect of Service

The Company shall not be liable for, and shall be fully indemnified and held harmless by the Customer against any claim, loss, expense, or damage for defamation, libel, slander, invasion of privacy, infringement of copyright or patent, unauthorized use of any trademark, trade name or service mark, or proprietary or creative right, or any other injury to any person, property or entity arising from the Customer's use of Services; out of the material, data, information, or other content revealed to, transmitted, or used by the Company under this Tariff; or for any act or omission of the Customer;

2.4.6. The Company shall not be liable for any defacement of or damage to equipment or premises of a Customer resulting from the furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the ins allation or removal thereof, unless such defacement or damage is caused by negligence or willful misconduct of the Company's agents or employees.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> <u>Buy</u> SECCETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

- 2.4.7 The Company is not liable for any claims for loss or damages involving:
 - A. Breach in the privacy or security of communications transmitted over the Company's facilities;
 - B. Any representations made by Company employees that do not comport, or that are inconsistent, with the provisions of this tariff;
 - C. Any non-completion of communications or transmissions due to network busy conditions;
- 2.4.8 The Company assumes r o responsibility for the availability or performance of any cable or satellite systems or related facilities under the control of other entities, or for other facilities provided by other entities used for service to the Customer, even if the Company has acted as the Customer's agent in arranging for such facilities or services. Such facilities are provided subject to such degree of protection or non-preemptibility as may be provided by the other entities.
- 2.4.9 Any claim of whatever nature against the Company shall be deemed conclusively to have been waived unless presented in writing to the Company within thirty (30) days after the date of the occurrence that gave rise to the claim.
- 2.4.10 The Company shall not be liable for any indirect, special, incidental, or consequential, exemplary or punitive damages under this tariff including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, for any reason whatsoever.
- 2.4.11 The liability of the Company for errors in billing that result in overpayment by the Customer shall be limited to credit equal to the dollar amount erroneously billed or, in the event that payment has been made and service has been discontinued, to a refund of the amount erroneously billed.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

- 2.4.12 The entire liability for any claim, loss, damage or expense from any cause whatsoever shall in no event exceed sums actually paid Company by Customer for the specific services givir g rise to the claim. No action or proceeding against the Company shall be commenced more than one year after the service is rendered.
- 2.4.13 The Company shall not be liable for damages or adjustments, refunds or cancellation of charges unless the Customer has notified the Company, in writing, of any dispute concerning charges, or the basis of any claim for damages, after the invoice is rendered by the Company for the call giving rise to such dispute or claim, unless ordered by the Commission pursuant to State law. Any such notice must set forth sufficient facts to provide the Company with a reasonable basis upon which to evaluate the Customer's claim or demands and must be consistent with the remedies set forth herein this Tariff
- 2.4.14 The Company shall not be liable for any damages, including usage charges, that the Customer may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its communications equipment. The unauthorized use of the Customer's communications equipment includes, but is not limited to, the placement of calls or transmission of data from the Customer's premises and the placement of calls and transmission of data through Customer-controlled or Customer-provisioned equipment that are transmitted or carried over the Company's network services without the authorization of the Customer. The Customer shall be fully liable for all such charges.
- 2.4.15 The Company shall not be liable for the Customer's failure to fulfill its obligation to take all necessary steps, including obtaining, installing and maintaining all necessary equipment, materials and supplies for interconnecting equipment or facilities of the Customer, or any third party acting as the Customer's agent, to the Company's network.
- 2.4.16. THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED EITHER IN "ACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDIN 3 WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

RV. Stedram Bul

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

2.4.17 No agents or employees of connecting, concurring or other participating carriers or companies shall be deerred agents or employees of the Company without written authorization.

2.5 Minimum Period of Service

- 2.5.1. The minimum period of service is as set forth in Section 2.1.4, except as may be otherwise provided in this Tariff. The customer must pay the regular tariffed rate for the service they subscribe to for the minimum period of service. If a customer disconnects service before the end of the minimum service period, that customer is responsible for paying the regular rates for the remainder of the minimum service period. When the service is moved within the same building, to another building on the same premises, or to a different premises entirely, the period of service at each location is accumulated to calculate if the customer has met the minimum period of service obligation.
- 2.5.2 If service is terminated before the end of the minimum period of service as a result of condemnation of property, damage to property requiring the premises to be abandoned, or by the death of the customer, the customer is not obligated to pay for service for the remainder of the minimum period.
- 2.5.3 If service is switched over to a new customer at the same premises after the first month's service, the minimum period of service requirements are assigned to the new customer if the new customer agrees in writing to accept them. For facilities not taken over by the new customer, the original customer is responsible for the remaining payment for the minimum service period in accordance with the terms under which the service was originally furnished.

Ν

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BV Stephan Bud
TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. – <u>RULES AND REGULATIONS</u> (Cont'd)

2.6 Customer Responsibility

- 2.6.1 The Customer is responsible for placing any necessary orders.
- 2.6.2 The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for services (and facilities) furnished to the Customer and to all users authorized by the Customer, regardless of whether those services are used by the Customer itself or are resold to or shared with other persons or whether such use is without or without the knowledge or consent of the Customer, and other applicable charges pursuant to this tariff. The security of the Customer's authorization codes, pre-subscribed exchange lines, and direct connect facilities are the responsibility of the Customer. All calls placed using direct connect facilities, pre-subscribed exchange lines, or authorization codes will be billed to and must be paid by the Customer.
- 2.6.3 Any applicant for facilities or service may be required to sign an application form requesting the Company to furnish the facilities or service in accordance with the rates, charges, rules and regulations from time to time in force and effect.
- 2.6.4 Maintenance of Equipment

If required for the provision of Company's services, the Customer must provide any equipment space, supporting structure, needed personnel, conduit and electrical power without charge to Company.

- A. The Customer shall cause the temperature and relative humidity in the equipment space provided by Customer for the installation of Company's equipment to be maintained within the range normally provided for the operation of such equipment.
- B. The Customer shall obtain, maintain, and otherwise having full responsibility for all rights-of-way and conduit necessary for installation of fiber optic cable and associated ecuipment. Any and all costs associated with the obtaining and maintaining the rights-of-way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be borne er tirely by, or may be charged by the Company to, the Customer. The Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to accepting an order for service.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane) Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 2.6 Customer Responsibility (Cont'd)
 - 2.6.5 Conditions for Installation
 - A. If Company installs equipment at Customer's premises, the Customer shall be responsible for payment of any applicable installation charge to the Company on the Customer's behalf. The Customer is responsible for charges incurred for special construction and or special facilities, which the Customer requests and which are ordered by the Company on Customer's behalf.
 - B. The Customer shall provide a safe place to work and comply with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the premises at which Company's emply eves and agents will be installing or maintaining the Company's facilities. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company facilities within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, injury or damage to the Company employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be responsible for icentifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous materials (e.g., friable asbestos) prior to any construction or installation work.
 - 2.6.6 The customer shall be responsible for making arrangements or obtaining permission for safe and reasonable access for Company employees or agents of the Company to enter the premises of the customer or any joint user or customer of the customer at any reasonable hour for the purpose of installing, testing, programming, repairing, testing or removing any part of the Company's facilities or equipment associated with the provision of the Company's services.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 1-0-2000

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. – RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2.6 Customer Responsibility (Cont'd

- 2.6.7 The Customer shall ensure that the equipment and or system is properly interfaced with Company's facilities or services, that the signals emitted into Company's network are of the proper mode, bandwidth, power and signal level for the intended use of the subscriber anc in compliance with criteria set forth in this tariff, and that the signals do not damage equipment, injure personnel, or degrade service to other Customers. If the Federal Communications Commission or some other appropriate certifying body certifies terminal equipment as being technically acceptable for direct electrical connection with interstate communications service, Company will permit such equipment to be connected with its channels without the use of protective interface devices. If the Customer fails to maintain the equipment and or system properly, with resulting imminent harm to Company equipment, personnel or the quality of service to other Customer Company may upon written notice, require the use of protective equipment at the Customer's expense. If this fails to produce satisfactory quality and safety. Company may, upon written notice, terminate the Customer's service.
- 2.6.8 The Customer must pay Company's for replacement or repair or damage to the equipment or facilities of Company caused by negligence or willful acts or omissions of the Customer or others, by improper use of the services, or by use of equipment provided by Customer or others, or the non-compliance by the Customer with this Tariff.
- 2.6.9 The Customer shall no create or allow to be placed any liens or other encumbrances on the Company's facilities or equipment
- 2.6.10 The Customer must use the service offered in this tariff in a manner consistent with the terms of this tariff and the policies and regulations of all state, federal and local authorities having jurisdiction over the service.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION	
OF KENTUCKY	
EFFECTIVE	

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 307 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. – <u>RULES AND REGULATIONS</u> (Cont'd)

2.7 Interruption of Service

2.7.1 Credit for Interruptions

Interruptions in service, which are not due to the {gross or willful} negligence of the Company, or which are not due to the non-compliance with the provisions of this Tariff by, the Customer, or the operation or malfunction of the facilities, power, or equipment provided by the Customer, will be credited to the Customer as set forth below for the part of the service that the interruption affects.

- A. Credit for failure to service shall be allowed only when such failure is caused by or occurs due to causes within the control of the Company, such as when any component furnished by the Company under this Tariff may fail, or in the event that the Company is entitled to a credit for the failure of the facilities o the Company's Ur derlying Carrier used to furnish service.
- B. It shall be the oblication of the Customer to notify the Company immediately of any interruption in service for which a credit allowance is desired. Before giving such notice, the Customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not being caused by any action or omission by the Customer within his control, or is not in wiring or equipment, if furnished by the Customer and connected to the Company's facilities.
- C. Credit for an interruption shall commence after the Customer notifies the Company of the interruption, or when the Company becomes aware thereof, and releases such service, facility or circuit for testing and repair, and the credit will cease when Service has been restored. If the Customer reports a service, facility, or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not interrupted.
- D. For the purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 720 hours.
- E. No credit shall be allowed for an interruption of a continuous duration of less than two hours.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2. - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2.7 Interruption of Service (Cont'd)

- 2.7.1 Credit for Interruption (Cort'd)
 - F. The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of two hours or more at the rate of 1/720th of the monthly usage charge for the facilities affected for each hour or major fraction thereof that the interruption continued.

Credit formula:

Credit = [A/ 720] * B

"A" · outage time in hours "B" · monthly charge for affected activity

G. Limitations on Credit Allowances

No credit allowance will be made for:

- interruptions due to the negligence of, or non-compliance with the provisions of this Tariff, by the customer, authorized user, or other common carriers connected to, or providing service connected to, the service of the Company or to the Company's facilities;
- 2. interruptions due to the negligence of any person other than the Company, including but not limited to the Customer or other common carriers connected to the Company's facilities;
- interruptions due to the failure or malfunction of non-Company equipment, including service connected to customer provided electric power;
- 4. interruptions of service during any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purpose of investigating and correcting interruptions;
- 5. interruption s of service during any period in which the Customer continues to use the service on an impaired basis;

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 2.7 Interruption of Service (Cont'd)
 - 2.7.1 Credit For Interruption (Cont'd)
 - G. Limitations (Cont'd)
 - interruptions of service during any period when the customer has released service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a customer order for a change in service arrangements;
 - 7. interruptions of service in order to perform tests and inspections to assure compliance with tariff regulations and the proper installation and operation of Customer and Company's equipment and facilities
 - 8. interruptions of service due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the Company.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

- 2.7 Interruption of Service (Cont'd)
 - 2.7.2 "Interruption" Defined

For the purpose of applying this provision, the word "interruption" shall mean the inability to complete calls either incoming or outgoing or both due to equipment malfunction or human errors. "Interruption" does not include and no allowance shall be given for service difficulties such as slow dial tone, circuits busy or other network and/or switching capacity shortages. Nor shall the interruption allowance apply where service is interrupted by the negligence or willful act of the subscriber or where the Company, pursuant to the terms of the Tariff, suspends or terminates service because of nonpeyment of bills, the Customer's, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service, or any other reason covered by the Tariff. No allowance shall be made for interruptions due to electric power failure where, by the provisions of this Tariff, the subscriber is responsible for providing electric power. Allowance for interruptions of measured rate service will not affect the subscriber's local call allowance during a given billing period.

2.7.3 For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have thirty (30) days. A credit allowance is applied on a pro rata basis against the rates specified hereunder and is dependent upon the length of the interruption. Only those facilities on the interrupted portion of the circuit will receive a credit. Credits attributable to any billing period for interruptions of service shall not exceed the total charges for that period for the service and facilities furnished by the Company rendered useless or substantially impaired.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan But Stephan OF THE COMMISSION

- 2.7 Interruption of Service (Cont'd)
 - 2.7.4 Cancellation for Service Interruption

Cancellation or termination for service interruption is permitted only if any circuit experiences a single continuous outage of 8 hours or more or cumulative service credits equaling 16 hours in a continuous 12-month period. The right to cancel service under this provision applies only to the single circuit, which has been subject to the outage, or cumulative service credits.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BV: Stephanic BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.8 Cancellation of Services

- 2.8.1 Without incurring liability, ...pon five (5) working days' written notice to the Customer, Company may immediate y discontinue services to a Customer or may withhold the provision of ordered or contracted services:
 - A. For nonpayment of any undisputed sum due Company for more than twenty (20) days after the rendering of the invoice for the amount due, and
 - B. except as may be set forth herein this Tariff to the contrary, for any continuing violation of any material term or condition of this Tariff which a Customer shall not have cured after the Company has given at least thirty (30) days prior written notice.

2.8.2 General

The Company, after notice in writing to the customer and after having given the customer an appropriate c portunity to respond to such notice, may terminate under the following conditions:

- A. in the event of prohibited, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service, or any other violation by the customer of the rules and regulations governing the facilities and service furnished, whether by reason of any order or decision of a court the commission or any other federal regulatory body or governmental authority or interpretation by the Company's lawyers thereof
- B. if, in the judgment of the Company, any use of the facilities or service by the customer may adversely affect the Company's personnel, plant, property or service or in the event of a condition which is determined to be hazardous to other Customers of the Company, to the Company's equipment, the public or to employees of the Company. The Company shall have the right to take immediate action, including termination of the service and severing of the connection, without notice to the customer when injury or damage to telephone personnel, plant, property or service is occurring, or is likely to occur, or
- C. in the event of una ithorized use, where the customer fails to take reasonable steps to prevent the unauthorized use of the facilities or service received from the Company, or

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy

2.8 Cancellation of Services (Cont'd)

- 2.8.2 General (Cont'd)
 - D. If the Company deems such refusal necessary to protect itself or third parties against fraud or o otherwise protect its personnel, agents, facilities or services without notice; or
 - E. in the event that service is connected for a customer who is indebted to the Company for service or facilities previously furnished, that service may be terminated by the Company unless the customer satisfies the indebtedness within 20 days after written notification
 - F. If the Customer provides false information to the Company regarding he Customer's identity, address, credit-worthiness, past, current or planned use of the Company's services.
 - G. Upon the Customer's insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors, filing for bankruptcy or reorganization, or failing to discharge an involuntary petition within the time per nitted by law, the Company may <u>immediately</u> discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.
 - H. Upon condemnation of any material portion of the facilities used by the Company to provice service to a Customer or if a casualty renders all or any material portion of such facilities inoperable beyond feasible repair, the Company, by notice to the Customer, may discontinue or suspend service without incurring any liability.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand BUI SECPETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.8 Cancellation of Services (Cont'd)

2.8.3 Prohibited, Unlawful or Improper Use of the Facilities or Service

Prohibited, unlawful or improper use of the facilities or service includes, but is not limited to:

- A. Calling or permitting others to call another person or persons so frequently or at such times of the day or in such manner as to harass, frighten, abuse or torment such other person or persons;
- B. The use of profane or obscene language;
- C. The use of the service in such a manner such that it interferes with the service of other customers or prevents them from making or receiving calls;
- D. The use of a mechanical dialing device or recorded announcement equipment to seize a customer's line, thereby interfering with the customer's use of the service;
- E. Permitting fraudulent use.
- 2.8.4 Abandonment or Unauthcrized Use of Facilities
 - A. If it is determined that facilities have been abandoned, or are being used by unauthorized persons, or that the customer has failed to take reasonable steps to prevent unauthorized use, the Company may terminate service.
 - B. In the event that terephone service is terminated for abandonment of facilities or unauthorized use and service is subsequently restored to the same customer at the same location:
 - 1. No charge shall apply for the period during which service had been terminated and
 - 2. Reconnect on charges will apply when service is restored. However, no charge shall be made for reconnection if the service was terminated due to an error on the part of the Company.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO SO7 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BUL SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2.8 Cancellation of Services (Cont'd)

2.8.5 Change in the Company's Ability to Secure Access

Any change in the Company's ability (a) to secure and retain suitable facilities and rights for the construction and maintenance of the necessary circuits and equipment or (b) to secure and retain suitable space for its plant and facilities in the building where service is provided to the customer may require termination of a customer's service until such time as new arrangements can be made. No charges will be assessed the customer while service is terminated, and no connection charges will apply when the service is restored.

- 2.8.6 the Customer may terminate service upon thirty (30) days written notice for the Company's Customer will be liable for all usage on any of the Company's service offerings until the Customer actually leaves the service.
- 2.8.7 Emergency Termination c⁺ Service

The Company will immed ately terminate the service of any customer, on request, when the customer has reasonable belief that an unauthorized person or persons are using the service. The Company may require that the request be submitted in writing as a follow-up to a request made by telephone.

2.8.8 The discontinuance of service(s) by the Company pursuant to this section does not relieve the Customer of any obligations to pay the Company for charges due and owing for service(s) furnished up to the time of discontinuance. Upon the Company's discontinuance of service to the Customer under this regulation, the Company, in addition to all other remeties that may be available to the Company at law or in equity or under any other provision of this tariff, may declare all future monthly and other charges which would have been payable by the Customer during the remainder of the term for which such services would have otherwise been provided to the Customer to be immediately due and payable.

		OF	VICE COMMISSICN KENTUCKY FECTIVE
		JUL	10 2000
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220		1 1)

Franklin, MA 02038

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. – <u>RULES AND REGULATIONS</u> (Cont'd)

- 2.8 Cancellation of Services (Cont'd)
 - 2.8.9 Cancellation for Application for Service
 - A. Applications for service are non-cancelable unless the Company otherwise agrees. Where the Company permits the Customer to cancel an application for service prior to the start of service or prior to any special construction, no charges will be imposed except for those specified below.
 - B. Where, prior to cancellation by the Customer, the Company incurs expenses in installing the service or in preparing to install the service that it otherwise would not have incurred, a charge equal to the costs the Company incurred, less net salvage, shall apply, but in no case shall this chare exceed the sum of the charge for the minimum period of services ordered, including installation charges, and all charges others levy against the Company that would have been chargeable to the Customer had service begun.
 - C. The special charge will be calculated and applied on a case-by-case basis.
 - 2.8.10 The remedies available to the Company set forth herein this Section shall not be exclusive, and the Company shall at all times be entitled to all the rights available to it under law or equity.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.9 Restoration of Service

- 2.9.1 The use and restoration of service shall be in accordance with the priority system specified in part 64, Subpart D of the Rules and Regulation of the Federal Communications Commission.
- 2.9.2 The use and restoration cf service n emergencies shall be in accordance with part 64, Subpart D of the Federal Communications Commission's Rules and Regulations on file with the Commission, which specifies the priority system for such activities.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephan()</u> <u>BU</u> BENETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2.10 Deposits

- 2.10.1 To safeguard its interests, the Company may require an applicant or Customer or to make a deposit to be held as a guarantee for the payment of charges, irrespective of whether in respect of new Service or restoration of service previously discontinued. The deposit will not exceed an amount equal to :
 - Α. two month's charges for a service or facility which has a minimum payment period of one morth; or
 - Β. the charges that would apply for the minimum payment period for a service or facility which has a minimum payment period of more than one month; except that the deposit may include an additional amount in the event that a termination charge is applicable.
- 2.10.2 The fact that a Deposit has been made shall in no way relieve the applicant or Customer from complying the Tariff regulations for the prompt payment of bills on presentation
- 2.10.3 Each applicant from whom a deposit is collected will be given a certificate of deposit and circular containing the terms and conditions applicable to deposits, in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Commission pertaining to customer deposits.
- 2.10.4 Simple interest will be credit or paid to the Customer while the Company holds the Deposit, in the event the payment of interest is required as and at the rate specified by the Commission.
- 2.10.5 A deposit may be required in addition to an advance payment.
- 2.10.6 When a service or facility is discontinued, the amount of a deposit, if any, will be applied to the Customer's account and any credit balance remaining will be refunded. Before the service or facility is discontinued, the Company will return the deposit or credit it to the Customer's account.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000 **EFFECTIVE:**

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) Stephand) BUI SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. – <u>RULES AND REGULATIONS</u> (Cont'd)

2.11 Advance Payments

The Company reserves the right to collect an advance payment from Customers in an amount not to exceed one (1) month's estimated charges as an advance payment for new service. This will be applied against the next month's charges, and if necessary, a new advance payment will be collected for the next month.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Bug SEOPETABY OF THE COMMISSION

2.12 Payment Arrangements and Billing

2.12.1 Service is provided and billed on a monthly (30-day), recurring basis. The billing date is dependent on the billing cycle assigned to the Customer. Charges for facilities and service, other than usage charges, are due monthly in advance; all other charges are payable upon request of the Company. The initial billing may, at Company's option, also include one month's estimated usage billed in advance. The Company shall present invoices for Recurring Charges billed to the Customer, in advance of the month in which service is provided. Payments for invoices shall be either the due date shown on the bill, or twenty (20) days after the date the Company has mailed the invoice to the Customer.

With the Company's approval, the Customer may elect to make payments to the Company for charges for tacilities and services furnished by the Company using the following credit / debit cards: Visa or MasterCard. The election to pay for services rendered by credit/debit card must be made when the Customer initially applies for service.

2.12.2 Payments should mailed to Company at the following address:

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 2.12.3 When service does not begin on the first day of the month, or end on the last day of the month, the charge for the fraction of the month in which service was furnished will be calculated on a pro rata basis for this purpose, every month is considered to have 30 days for this purpose.
- 2.12.4 Charges for Service commence on the date service becomes effective and such Service shall be deemed to continue to apply until canceled by the Customer on not less than thirty (30) days' notice.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> <u>BUU</u> SECHETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 2.12 Payment Arrangements and Billing (Cont'd)
 - 2.12.5 If any portion of the payment is not received by the Company by the applicable due date, or if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not immediately available, then a late payment penalty shall apply and be due to the Company; provided, however, late payment penalties will not apply to those portions (and only those portions of unpaid balances that are associated with disputed amounts. Undisputed amounts on the same bill are subject to late payment charges if unpaid and carried forward to the next bill. The late payment penalty shall be the portion of the payment not received by the date due, multiplied by a late factor of the lesser of 1.5 % [applicable on a monthly basis] or the maximum rate allowed by law.
 - 2.12.6 All bills are presumed accurate, and shall be binding on the Customer unless objection is received by the Company in writing within thirty (30) days after such bills are rendered. No credits, refunds, or adjustments shall be granted if demand thereof is not received by the Company in writing within such thirty-(30) day period. A bill will not be deemed correct and binding upon the customer if the Company has records on the basis of which an objection may be considered, or if the customer has in his or her possession such Company records.
 - 2.12.7 Billing disputes should be addressed to the Company's customer service organization by mail at TCTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC, 124 Grove Street, Suite 220, Franklin, MA 02038 or via telephone. Customer service representative are available from 8:00 am to 4:59 p.m. Eastern Standard Time. Messages may be left for the Customer Service Commission from 5:00 p.m. to 7.59 a.m. Eastern Standard Time, which will be answered on the next business day, unless in the event of an emergency which threatens Customer Service, which case customer service personnel may be pages.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephane BW

2.12 Payment Arrangements and Billing (Cont'd)

- 2.12.8 In the case of a dispute between the Customer and the Company for which service furnished to the Customer, which cannot be settled with mutual satisfaction, the Customer can take the following course of action.
 - A. First, the Customer may request, and the Company will perform, and indepth review of the disputed amount. The undisputed portion and subsequent bills must be paid on a timely basis or the service may be subject to disconnection.
 - B. Second, if there is still disagreement over the disputed amount after the investigation and review by a manager of the Company, the Customer may appeal to the Commission's Division of Consumer Affairs for its investigation and decision.

Public Service Commission of Kentucky 211 Sower Boulevard P.O. Box 615 Frankfort, KY 406()2 Telephone No.: (502) 564-3940

2.12.9 A fee of \$25.00 will be charged whenever a check or draft is presented by the Company for payment for service is not accepted by the institution on which it is written.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011,
SECTION 9 (1)
BV: Stephand Buy
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

2. - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2.13 Collection Costs

In the event the Company is required to initiate legal proceedings to collect any amounts due to Company for regulated or non-regulated services, equipment or facilities, or to enforce any judgment obtained against Customer, or for the enforcement of any provision of this Tariff or applicable law, Customer shall, in addition to all amounts due, be liable to Company for all reasonable costs incurred by Company in such proceedings and enforcement actions, including reasonable attorney' fees, collection agency fees or payments, and court costs. In any such proceeding, the amount of collection costs, including attorneys' fees, due to the Company, will be determined by the Court.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stechand BW

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2.14 Surcharges and Taxes

- 2.14.1 In addition to the charges applicable according to the rules and regulations of this Tariff, various surcharges and taxes may apply to the customer's monthly billing statement. The Customer's responsible for payment of any fees (including franchise and right-of-way fees), charges, surcharges and taxes (however designated) (including without limitation's sales, use, gross receipts, excise, access or other taxes but excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed by any local, state, or federal government on or based upon the provision, sale or use of Services. Fees, charges, and taxes imposed by a city, county, or other political subdivision will be collected only from those. Sustomers receiving service within the boundaries of that subdivision. Such surcharges and taxes will be billed as separate line items and are not included in the rates cuoted herein this Tariff.
- 2.14.2 If a municipality or political subdivision collects or receives any payment or payments or any telephone service without charge or at reduced rates from the Customer for or by reason of the use of the streets, alleys or public places of a municipality or subdivision or for or by reason of the operation of the Customer's business or any portion or phase thereof in the municipality or political subdivision or by reason of an agreement between the municipality or political subdivision and the Customer, whether such payments or such service be called a license, occupational, privilege, franchise or inspection tax or fee or otherwise, or whether in a lump sum, or at a flat rate, based on receipts or based on poles, wires, conduits or other facilities or otherwise, the aggregate amount of such payments and such service will be billed, insofar as practical, pro rata to the exchange customers within such municipality or political subdivision, provided however, the foregoing shall not apply to any such payment or payments or the any such telephone service without charge or at reduced rates during the term of any agreements or arrangements now in effect.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: SECTION 9 (1)
ev Stephand Bul
CONTINUE OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2.15 Full Force and Effect

Should any provision or portion of this Tariff be held by a court or administrative agency of competent jurisdiction to be illega, invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Tariff will remain in full force and effect.

2.16 Transfers and Assignments

The Customer may not assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the prior written consent of the Company.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) PV Storach Brad

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

2.17 Notices and Communications

- 2.17.1 The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company shall mail or deriver all notices and other communications except that Customer may also design ate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be mailed.
- 2.17.2 The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address, which is currently TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC, 124 Grove Street, Suite 220, Franklin, MA 02038, to which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that the Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail payment on that bill.
- 2.17.3 All notices and other communications required to be given pursuant to this Tariff will be in writing. Notices and other communications of either party, and all bills mailed by the Company, shall be presumed to have been delivered to the other party on the third business day following the placement of the notice, communications or bill with the U.S. mail, or a private deliver service, prepaid and properly addressed, or when actually received or refused by the addressee, whichever occurs first.
- 2.17.4 The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving notice set forth herein.

2.18 Attorney's Fees

In any action between the parties to enforce any provision of this tariff, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its lec al fees and court costs from the non-prevailing party in addition to other relief a court ma, award.

2.19 <u>Governing Law</u>

This tariff shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the State of Kentucky without regard for its choice of law provisions.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

SECTION 9 (1) 3V: <u>Stephand BU</u> SECRETITY OF THE COMMISSION

3. - ORDERING OPTIONS FOR SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICES

3.1 <u>General</u>

This section sets forth the regulations and order related charges for Access Orders for Switched Access Services. These charges are in addition to other applicable charges as set forth in other sections of this Tarif.

An Access order is an order to provided the customer with Switched Access Service or specialized services and arrangement or to provide charges to existing services. A Signal Transfer Point (STP) port and the Dedicated Network Access Link connecting that STP port to a customer designated premises is considered one service.

3.1.1 Ordering Conditions

A customer may order any number of services of the same type and between the same premises on a single Access Order. All details for services for a particular order must be identical except for those for multi-point service. All services on an Access order must have the same customer requested service date.

An Administrative Charge applies any time a customer initiates an order for service. This charge applies once per customer order, regardless of the number of facilities ordered.

A Design and Central Office Connection Charge applies any time customer initiated order for service requires engineering design and or connection or changes at the Company central office. This charge applies once per circuit. A separate Design and Central Office Connection Charge applies for each switched Access Service line or trunk activated on Switched Transport Services or Special Access circuits.

A Customer Connection Charge applies any time a customer initiated order for service requires connection of or changes to a line or trunk for Switched Access, or a Local Distribution Channel (LD), if appropriate. This charge applies once per LDC, line or trunk affected by the order.

The three charges descrited in the preceding page do not apply to any services in Section 4.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

UL 10 2000 EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011,

SECTION 9(1) BY: <u>Stephand BW</u>

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

- 3.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 3.1.1 Ordering Conditions (Cort'd)

The customer shall provide all information necessary for the Company to provide and bill for the requested service. In addition to the order information required in Section 3.2 following, the customer must also provide:

- Customer name and premises address(es).
- Billing name and address (when different from customer name and address)
- Customer contact name(s) and telephone number(s) for the following provisioning activities: order negotiation, order confirmation, interactive design, installation and billing.

The order date, which is known as the Application Date, is the date on which the Company receives a firm commitment and sufficient information form the customer to allow processing of the Access Order. The customer is advised of the Application Date at the time the Company gives the customer a firm order confirmation.

- 3.1.2 Provision of Other Services.
 - A. In addition to Switched Access Services, other services offered under the provisions of this tariff shall be ordered with an Access Order or as set forth in B following. The rates and charges for these services are as set forth in other sections of this Tariff, and will apply in addition to the ordering charges set forth in this section and the rates and charges for the Access Services with which they are associated..
 - B. With the agreement of the Company, the items listed in A preceding may subsequently be added to the order at any time up to and including the service date for the Access Service. When added subsequently, charges for a design change as set forth in Section 3.1.2.C following will apply when an engineering review is required.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 3.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 3.1.2 Provision of Other Services (Cont'd)
 - C. Additional Engineering is not an ordering option, but will be applied to an Access Order when the Company determines that Additional Engineering is necessary to accommodate a customer request. Additional Engineering will only be required as set forth in Section 10.1 following. When it is required, the customer will be notified and will be furnished with a written statement setting forth the justification for Additional Engineering as well as an estimate of the charges. If the customer agrees to the Additional Engineering, a firm order will be established. If the customer does not want the service or fac lities after being notified that Additional Engineering of Company facilities is required, the order will be withdrawn and no charges will apply. Once a firm order has been established, the total charge to the customer for Additional Engineering may not exceed the estimated amount by more than 10%.

The regulations, rates and charges for Additional Engineering are as set forth in Section 10.^{*n*} following and are in addition other regulations, rates and charges specified in this Section.

3.1.3 Special Construction.

The regulations, rates and charges for special construction are set forth in the Tariffs as defined in Section 1 preceding and are in addition to the regulations, rates and charges specified in this Tariff.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO SO7 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> <u>Buy</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

3.2 Access Order

An Access Order is used by the Company to provide a customer Switched Access Service as follows:

- Switched Access Service as set forth in 4 following,
- Other Services as set forth in Section 3.1.2 preceding.

When placing an order for Access Service, the customer shall provide, at a minimum, the following information:

- For Switched Access Service to be provided in connection with one or more lines (not Trunks), the customer shall specify the number of lines and the first point of switching (i.e., dial tone office), the directionality of the service and the Switched Transport and Local Switching options desired. In addition the customer shall specify whether the off-hook supervisory signaling for the order line(s) is to be provided by the customer's equipment (i.e., MTS/WATS-type application) or is to be forwarded by the customer's equipment when the called party answers (i.e., FX/ONAL applications). The customer shall also specify which lines are to be arranged in multi-line hunt group arrangements and which lines are to be provided as single lines.
- The customer shall also specify any extensions to a different LATA, if applicable. When such an extension is specified on the order, the customer must also specify the customer's premises in the LATA with the Switched Access Service, at which the extension is to be terminated.
- For Switched Access Services to be provided in connection with one or more trunks, the customer shall specify the r umber of trunks and the end office when direct routing to the end office is desired or the access tandem switch when routing is desired via an access tandem switch and Switched Transport options and Local Switching options desired. When ordering such trunks to an access tandem, the customer must also provide the Company an estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to and or from each end office subtending the access tandem to assist the Company in its own efforts to project further facility requirements. In addition, the customer shall also specify for terminating only access whether the trunks are to be arranged in trunk group arrangements or provided as single trunks.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - When a customer orders Switched Transport, the customer is responsible to assure that sufficient access facilities have been ordered to handle its traffic. When Switched Access Service is ordered with the Tandem Signaling Optional Feature, the customer shall specify the number of one-way originating and or one-way terminating trunks to the Company end offices.
 - When a customer orders a new Switched Access Service, it must specify whether the service will be transported over new or existing Switched Transport Services. If the service will be transported over existing Switched Transport services, these services must have a compatible interface and sufficient capacity for the new service. If the Switched Access Service is to be transported over new Switched Transport facilities, the additional information specifie: I in Section 3.2(A) following must also be supplied.
 - When a customer desires Swinched Access Service to an end office that is a remote switching office, the customer must order to the host office which controls the remote switching office since all traffic to and or from a remote switching office must be routed through the host office. The customer must also provide the Company an estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to and or from each end office served by that host.
 - For the Flexible Automatic Number Identification (Flex ANI) optional feature the customer shall place one order for each Carrier Identification Code (CIC) per LATA, for all end offices equipped to provide Flex ANI within the LATA. Locations for Flex ANI are found in the National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc., Tariff No. 4.
 - For Dedicated Access Line Service the customer must also specify the type of calling (i.e., two-way, originating only or terminating only) for which the service is to be provided. Additionally, when the WATS functions ordered by the customer are not provided at the wire center, which serves the customer originating or terminating premises, the Company will provide the service to the nearest wire center where these functions are available. In these circumstances, the customer will be so notified and the order will be changed to designate the appropriate wire center. No charge will apply for the order change, however, the appropriate channel mileage charges will apply. If the desired WATS functions are later made available at the normal wire center, the Company will cease billing channel mileage charges for the extension as of the availability date of those functions.

PUBI	LIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE	
EFFECTIVE:	JUL 10 2000	

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephane Buy

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - For Local Number Portability Query Service, N-1 telecommunications carrier who arrange in advance for the Company to perform queries on the behalf must identify where calls will terminate, i.e., which end office or tandem switch, and provide rolling three (3) months estimates of the volume of traffic including estimated total monthly traffic and maximum busy hour volumes and the Company switch to which this traffic volume is routed.

3.2.1. Ordering Switched Transport Services

When the customer orders Switched Transport Services, they must be compatible with any transport facilities to which the new services are to be interconnected. The minimum information that must be provided for new Entrance Facilities, Direct Transport Services and o Tandem Switched Transport Services is as follows:

A. Entrance Facilities

For new Entrance Facilities the customer must specify:

- The number of Entrance Facilities
- The number of :ustomer premises to which the Entrance facility is to be connected
- The interface at the customer premises
- The type of connection (i.e., Voice Grade, DS or DS3)
- If the capacity c1 the Switched Transport Service is not compatible with the Entrance Facility, multiplexing must be ordered with the Switched Transport Service
- Any Switched Transport optional features.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 3.2 <u>Access Order</u> (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.1 Ordering Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - B. Direct Transport Services

For new Direct Transport Services the customer must specify:

- The number of Direct Transport Services
- The type of connection (i.e., Voice Grade, S1 or DS3)
- The Entrance Facility to which the Direct Transport is to be connected.
- If the capacity of the Switched Transit Service is not compatible with the Entrance Facility, multiplexing must be ordered with the Switched Transport Service
- Any Switched Transport optional features (if multiplexing is ordered, the customer must specify each end office or serving wire center where multiplexers are required and the channel assignment for each Direct Transport circuit and or Switched Access Service assigned to the multiplexed fac lity).
- C. Tandem-Switched Transport Services

For new Tandem-Switched Transport Services the customer must specify:

- The number of Switched Access Service lines or trunks
- The Entrance Facility or Direct Transport Service at which the Tandem-Switched Transport Service is to be connected and the associated connecting facility assignment.
- Any Switched T ansport optional features.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

> <u>Stephanel</u> Bey SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.2 Access Order Service Date Intervals

Access Service is provided with one of the following Service Date Intervals

- Standard Interval
- Negotiated Interval

To the extent the Access Service can be made available with treasonable effort, the Company will provide the Access Service in accordance with the customer's requested interval, subject to the following conditions:

A. Standard Interval

Access Services provided in a Standard interval will be installed during Company business days in accordance with operating policies and procedures the Customer will implement from time to time. If a customer requests that installation be done outside of normally scheduled working hours, and the Company agrees to this request, the customer will be subject to application Additional Labor Charges as set forth in Section 10.2.6 following.

B. Negotiated Interval

The Company will negotiate a service date interval with the customer when:

- 1. There is no Standard Interval for the service or
- 2. the quality of Access Services ordered exceed the quantities specified in the standard intervals, or
- 3. the customer requests a service date beyond the applicable Standard Interval service date.

The Company will offer a service date based on the type and quantity of Access Services the customer has requested. The a negotiated interval may not exceed by more than six months the Standard Interval Service date, or, when there is not Standard Interval, the Company offered service date. All services for which rates are applied on an individual case basis are provided with a Negotiated interval.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE	
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000	
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> By SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION	

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.3 Access Order Modification

The customer may request a modification of its Access Order at any time prior to notification by the Company that service is available for the customer's use. The Company will make every effort to accommodate a requested modification when it is able to do so. If the modification cannot be accommodated, the Company will notify the customer. If the customer still desire the Access Order modification, the Company will schedule a new service date. All charges for Access Order modification will apply on a per occurrence basis.

Any increase in the number of Special Access Service channels or Switched Access Service lines, trunks or busy hour minutes of capacity will be treated as a new Access order (for the increased amount only).

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephane Buy

3.2 <u>Access Order</u> (Cont'd)

- 3.2.3 Access Order Modification (Cont'd)
 - A. Service Date Change Charge

Access Order services dates for the installation of new services or rearrangements of existing services may be changed, but the new service date may not exceed the original service date by more than 30 calendar days. When, for any reason, the customer indicates that service cannot be accepted for a period not to exceed 30 calendar days, and the Company accordingly delays the start of service, a Service Date Change Charge will apply. If the customer requested service date is more than 30 calendar days after the original service date, the order will be canceled by the Company and reissued with the appropriate cancellation charges applied unless the customer indicates that billing for the service is to commence as set forth in Section 3.2.2(A) following.

A new service date may be established that is prior to the original standard or negotiated interval service date if the Company determines it can accommodate the customer's request without delaying service dates for orders of other customers. If the service date is changed to an earlier date, the customer will be notified by the Company that Expedited Order Charges as set forth in (D) following will apply. Such charges will apply in addition to the Service Date Change Charge.

A Service Date Charge Charge will apply on a per order per occurrence basis for each service date changed. The applicable charge is:

	<u>USOC</u>	<u>Charge</u>
Service Date Change Charge - per order	OMC	\$ 20.47

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.3 Access Order Modification (Cont'd)
 - B. Partial Cancellation Charge

Any decrease in the number of ordered Special Access Service channels or Switched Access Service lines, trunks or busy hour minutes of capacity will be treated as a partial cancellation and the charge as set forth in Section 3.2.4.B following will apply.

C. Design Change Charge

The customer may request a design change to the service ordered. A design change is any change to an Access Order, which requires engineering review. An engineering review is a review by Company personnel of the service ordered and the requested changes to determine what change in the design, if any, are necessary to meet the changes requested by the customer.

The Company will review the requested change, notify the customer whether the change is a design change, if it can be accommodated and if a new service date is required. If the customer authorizes the Company to proceed with the design change, a Design Change Charge will apply. the Change Charge will apply on a per order per occurrence basis, for each order requiring a design change. The applicable charge is:

	USOC	Charge
Design Change Charge,		A 50.00
- per order	H28	\$ 59.93

If a change of serv ce date is required, the Service Date Change charges as set forth in (A) preceding will also apply.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Bul SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

- 3.2.3 Access Order Modification (Cont'd)
 - D. Expedited Order Charge

When placing an Access Order, a customer may request a service date that is prior to the standard interval service date. A customer may also request an earlier service date on a pending standard or negotiated interval Access Order. If the Company determines that service can be provided on the requested date and that additional labor cost or extraordinary costs are required to meet the requested service date, the customer will be notified and will be provided with an estimate of the additional charges involved.

To calculate the additional labor charges, the Company will, upon authorization from the Customer to incur the additional labor charges, keep track of the additional labor hours used to meet the request of the customer and will bill the customer at the applicable Additional Labor charges as set forth in Section 10.2.6.A. following.

When expediting occurs subsequent to the issuance of the Access Order, a Service Date Change Charge as set forth in (A) preceding also applies.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BUI SECPETARY OF THE COMMISSION

3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

- 3.2.4 Cancellation of an Access Order
 - A. A customer may cancel an Access order for the installation of services on any date prior t the installation of service. The cancellation date is the date the Company receives written or verbal notice from the Customer that the order is to be canceled. The verbal notice must be followed by written confirmation within 10 days. If a customer or a customer's end user is unable to accept Access Services within 30 calendar days after the original service date, the customer has the choice of the following options:
 - The Access Order shall be canceled and charges set forth in (B) following will apply; or
 - Billing for the service will commence.

In such instances, the cancellation date or the billing date, depending on which option is selected by the customer, shall be the 31st day beyond the original service date of the Access Order.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Bay SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:
3. - ORDERING OPTIONS F()R SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICES (Cont'd)

3.2 <u>Access Order</u> (Cont'd)

- 3.2.4 Cancellation of an Access Order (Cont'd)
 - B. When a customer cancels an Access order for the installation of service, a Cancellation Charge will apply as follows:
 - 1. Installation of Switched facilities is considered to have started when the Company incurs any cost in connection therewith or in preparation thereof which would not otherwise have been incurred.
 - 2. When the Customer cancels an Access Order prior to the start of installation of access facilities, no charges shall apply.
 - 3. When installation of access facilities has been started prior to the cancellation, the charges specified in (a) or (b) following, whichever is lower, shall apply.
 - a charge equal to the costs incurred in such installation, less estimated net salvage. Such charge is determined as detailed in (4) following.
 - b. The charge for the minimum period of Switched or Special Access Service ordered by the customer including all applicable non-recurring charges.
 - 4. Charges applicable as specified in (3)(a) preceding include the non-recoverable cost of equipment and material ordered, provided or used plus the non-recoverable costs of installation and removal including the costs of engineering, labor, supervision, transportation, rights-of-way and other associated costs.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Bul SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

3. - ORDERING OPTIONS FC/R SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICES (Cont'd)

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.4 Cancellation of an Access Order (Cont'd)
 - C. When a customer cancels an order for the discontinuance of service no charges apply for the cancellation.
 - D. If the Company misses a service date by more than thirty (30) days due to circumstances over which is has direct control (excluding, e.g., acts of God, government requirements, work stoppages and civil commotion) the customer may cancel the Access Order without incurring cancellation charges.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVERSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stechard But SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

3. - ORDERING OPTIONS F()R SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICES (Cont'd)

- 3.2 Access Order (Cont'd)
 - 3.2.5 Minimum period

Except as may be set forth herein this Tariff to the contrary, the minimum period for which Access S ervice is provided and for which charges are applicable, is one month

3.2.6 Minimum Period Charges

When Access Service is disconnected prior to the expiration of the minimum period, chare are applicable for the balance of the minimum period.

The Minimum Period Charge for monthly billed services will be determined as follows:

A. For Switched Access Service, the charge for a month or fraction thereof is equal to the applicable minimum monthly charge for the capacity as set forth in Section 4.3.6 following.

All applicable non-recurring charges for the service will be billed in addition to the Minimum Period Charge.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BV: <u>Stephane</u> BUD SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

2 Section 4

4. -SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE

4.1 General

Switched Access Service, which s available to customer for their use in furnishing their services to end users, provides a two-point electrical communications path between customer's premises and an end user's premises. It provides for the use of common terminating, common switching ard Switched Transport facilities, and common subscriber plant of the Company. Switched Access Service provides for the ability to originate calls from an end user's premises to a customer's premises, and to terminate calls from a customer's premises to an end user's premises in the LATA where it is provided. Specific references to material describing the elements of Switched Access Service are provided in Sections 4.1.1 and 4.1.3 following.

Rates and charges for Switched Access Serviced depend generally on its use by the customer, i.e., for MTS or WATS services, MTS-WATS equivalent services, or other services and whether it is provided in a Company end office that is equipped to provide equal access. The rates and charges for Switched Access Service also depend on whether the Switched Transport is switched through an access tandem or direct routed and whether the direct routed transport is routed between:

- The customer's service wire center and an end office, hub or tandem, or

- A hub or tandem and an end office.

Rates and charges for Switched Access Service are set forth in Section 4.4 following. The application of rates for Switched Access Service is described in Section 4.3 following. Rates and charges for services other than Switched Access Service, e.g., a customer's interLATA toll message service, may also be applicable when Switched Access Service is used in conjunction with these other services. Description of such applicability are provided in this Section following. Finally, a cred t is applied against line side Switched Access Service charges as described in Section 4.3.11 following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

4.1.1 Switched Access Service Arrangements and Manner of Provisions

Switched Access Services are differentiated by their technical characteristics, e.g., line side vs. trunk side connection at the Company entry switch, the type of Switched Transport (i.e., Direct Transport or Tandem-Switched Transport) and the manner in which an end user accesses them in originating calling, e.g., with or without an access code. Following is a brief description of each type of service arrangement.

- A. The Switched Access Services are shown below. The charge indicates whether the feature is available as a chargeable or non-chargeable option under both the Bundled Local Switching option and the Unbundled Local Switching option.
 - B. Circuit Switched -

Circuit Switched Access Service, which is available to all customers, provides line side access from the customer's premises to Company end office switches with an associated seven digit local telephone number for the customer's use in originating communications from and terminating communications to an Interexchange Carrier's Interstate Service or a customer-provided private network used for interstate communications.

When ordering the circuit-switched Switched Access Service, the customer must specify the Interexchange Carrier to which the service is connected or, in the alternative, specify the means by which the access communications is transported to another state. If the customer can not specify the type of connection used to transport traffic to another state, the line side device should be obtained as provided under the Company's local and or general exchange service tariffs.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> <u>Buy</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4.1 General (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Switched Access Service Arrangements and Manner of Provisions (Cont'd)
 - C. Circuit Switched trunk

Circuit-switched-trunk Switched Access Service, which is available to all customers, provides trunk side access to Company end office switched with an associated uniform 950-XXXX access code for the customer's use in originating communications from and terminating communications to an Interexchange Canier's Interstate Service or a customer-provided Interstate communications capability. The customer, upon request by the Company, must specify the Interexchange Carrier to which the service is connected.

D. 500 Access Service

500 Access Service is an originating offering using trunk side Switched Access Service. This service provides a customer identification function for numbers using the 500 service access code (i.e., 1+500+NXX-XXX).

When a customer equests the Company to open the 500 access code and any associated NXXs within a specified LATA, the order must include the provisioning of all offices within that LATA.

When a 1+500+NX-XXX call is originated by an end user, the Company will use the 500-NX dialed digits to determine the customer identification and the customer location to which the call is to be routed. If the call originates from an end office not equipped to provide the customer identification function, the call will be routed to an office at which the function is available. Once sustomer identification has been established, the call will be routed to the customer. Call s originating in an end office switch to which the customer has rot ordered 500 Access Service will be routed to intercept.

The manner in wh ch 500 Access Service is provided is dependent on the status of the end office from which the service is provided (i.e., equipped with equal access capabilities or not equipped with equal access capabilities). When 500 Access Service is provided form an end office

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSU	ED:	
------	-----	--

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 General (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Switched Access Service Arrangements and Manner of Provisions (Cont'd)
 - E. 500 Access Service (Cont'd)

equipped with equal access capabilities, all such service will be provisioned in accordance with the technical characteristics available (i.e., technical specifications, Company switch and customer premises interfaces, design blocking criteria, addressing signaling, etc.). When 500 Access Service is provided from an end office not equipped with equal access capabilities, such service will be provisioned in accordance with the technical characteristics.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> > JUL 10 2000

EFFECTINEUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
SECTION 9 (1)
BY Stephand Buy
TRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.2 General (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Switched Access Service Arrangements and Manner of Provisions (Cont'd)
 - F. 900 Access Service

900 Access Service, is an originating offering utilizing trunk side Switched Access Service. The service provides a customer identification function based on the dialed 900 number.

When a customer requests the Company to open a 900 NXX access code for 900 Access Service within a specified LATA, the order must include the provisioning of all offices with that LATA, or, at the customer's option, all offices equipped with equal access capabilities within that LATA. When a 1+900+NXX-XXXX call is originated by an end user, the Company will perform the customer identification based on the 900-NXX dialed digits to determine the customer location to which the call is to be routed. If the call originates form an end office not equipped to provide the customer identification function, the call will be routed to an office at which the function is available. Once the identification has been established, the call will be routed to the custo ner. Call originating in an end office switch but to which the customer has not ordered 900 Access Service, will be routed to intercept. Unless prohibited by technical limitations (e.g., different dialing plans), the customer's 900 Access Service traffic may, at the option of the customer, be combined in the same trunk group arrangement with the customer's non-900 Access Service traffic. When required by technical limitations, or at the request of the customer, a separate trunk group will be established for 900 Access Service. The Company may, at its option, implement network management controls (e.g., call gapping and code blocking) to protect the network from traffic surges due to peaked 900 Access Services.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> > JUL 10 2000

EFFECT HURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephant BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. -<u>SWITCHEE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 General (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Switched Access Service Arrangements and Manner of Provision (Cont'd)
 - G. Manner of Provision

Switched Access is furnished in quantities of lines or trunks.

Trunks are differentiated by type and directionality of traffic carried over Switched Access Serviced arrangement. Differentiation of traffic is necessary for the Company to properly designed Switched Access Service to meet the traffic carrying capacity requirement of the Customer.

There are two major traffic types. These are: Originating and Terminating. Originating traffic type represents access capacity with a LATA for carrying traffic for the end Liser to the customer. Terminating traffic type represents access capacity within a LATA for carrying traffic from the customer to the end user. Additionally, when ordering capacity for 500 Access Service or 900 Access Service, the customer must specify the originating type.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Bell SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHEL ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

4.1.2 Dedicated Access Line Service

Dedicated Access Line Service is a type of special access service that is provided for use with Switched Access Service, as described below. The customer must specify the type of Switched Access Service to be used in conjunction with each Dedicated Access Line ordered.

Where intrastate calls are carried over Dedicated Access Lines, applicable intrastate rates and charges will be ι sed to rate those calls. Intrastate intraLATA calls will be completed in a manner consistent with established policies of intrastate authorities.

Connections to Switched Access Service may be made as follows:

A. Switched Access Capability

When used to provide Switched Access Capability, Dedicated Access Line Service connects an end user's premises with a Switched Access Serving Office.

Switched Access Service for Switched Access Capability is connected to a Dedicated Access Line at the Switched Access Serving Office, with no blocking or screening of traffic. Optional blocking and screening is available as a Common Switching Optional Features

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

4.1.3 Rate Categories

There are four rate categories, which apply to Switched Access Service

- Switched transport (described in Section 4.1.3.A following)
- End Office (described in Section 4.1.3.B) following)
- Common Line (described in Sections 6 and 7, following)

In addition to the four rate categories, an Information Surcharge as set forth in Section 4.4.9 following, applies to all Switched Access Service Arrangement.

A. Switched Transport

The Switched Transport rate category provides the transmission facilities between the Customer's premises and the end office switch(es) where the customer's traffic s switched to originate or terminate the customer's communications. t is composed of Switched Transport /Service rate elements, Switched Transport Optional Feature rate elements and the Residual Charge rate element.

Switched Transport is a two-way voice frequency transmission path composed of facilities determined by the Company. The two-way voice frequency transmission path permits the transport of calls in the originating direction (from the end user end office switches to the customer's premises) and in the terminating direction (from the customer's premises to the end office switch), but not simultaneously The voice frequency transmission path may be comprised of any form or configuration of plant capable of and typically used in the telecommunications industry for the transmission of voice and associated telephone signals within the frequency bandwidth of approximately 300 to 3000 Hz.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

<u>JUL 10 20</u>00

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephano BUI

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. –<u>SWITCHEE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1.3. Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)

Switched Transport consists of various types of facilities, connections and optional features.

Four different types of Switched Transport Services are available: Entrance Facilities, Direct Transport, Tandem-Switched transport Service, and Dedicated Signaling transport Facilities. These services and the rate elements associated with them are described in Section 4.1.3.A.1 following.

Switched Transport is provided at the rates and charges set forth in Sections 4.4.1 and 4.4.4 following. The application of these rates with respect to the different types of service is as set forth in Section 4.3.1.D following.

The Company will work cooperatively with the customer in determining the directionality of the service.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 4.1.3. Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services
 - a. Entrance Facilities

Switched Transport Entrance Facilities provide for a ded cated transmission facility between the customer's point of termination and the Company's serving wire center. Included as part of the Entrance Facility is a standard network interface, which defines the technical characteristics associated with the type of facilities to which the Switched Access Service is connected at the point of termination. The customer may select from a variety of entrance facilities operating at different transmission speeds and transmission characteristics defined by the networked interface codes.

The Entrance Facility rate elements are comprised of a Voice Grade Entrance Facility rate, an LT-1 Entrance Facility rate and an LT-3 entrance Facility rate depending on the transmission speed of the Entrance Facility that the customer selects. These Entrance Facilities provide transmission operating at the following speeds:

- Voice Grade Entrance Facilities provide analog transmission operating at 300 to 3000 Hz.
- LT-1 Entrance Facilities provide digital transmission operating at the terminating bit rate of 1.544 Mbps; and
- LT-3 entrance Facilities provide digital

transmission operating at the terminating bit rate of 44.736 Mbps.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

-JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

BY: <u>Stephane</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. -<u>SWITCHEE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 4.1.3. Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - a. Entrance Facilities (Cont'd)

The rate application for Entrance Facilities is set forth in Section 4.3.1.D. Switched Transport Entrance Facilities are provided at the rates and charges set forth in Section 4.4.4.

b. Direct Transport Services

Direct Transport services provide Switched Transport that does not require switching at an access tandem. Direct Transport characteristics are described below.

The Direct Transport option provides Switched Transport on circ. its dedicated to the use of a single customer between:

- The customer's serving wire center and an end office;
- The customer's serving wire center and an access tandem; or
- The customer's serving wire center and a Company hub where multiplexing functions are performed; or
- A. Company hub and an end office.

Direct Transport provides Switched Transport on circuits with the following transmission characteristics:

 Voice Grade Direct Transport rate elements are provided over analog facilities operating at 300 to 3000 Hz;

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38

 $\widehat{}$

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - b. Direct Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - L^r-1 Direct Transport rate elements are provided cver digital transmission facilities operating at the terminating bit rate of 1.544 Mbps; and
 - L⁻-3 Direct Transport rate elements are provided cver digital transmission facilities operating at the terminating bit rate of 44.736 Mbps.

Direct Transport requires a trunk port and may require multiplexing.

When the customer orders Direct Transport to an access tandem, then all Switched Transport switched through the tandem to end offices subtending the tandem must be ordered as Direct Transport to the tandem. All Switched Transport that is routed through an access tandem must include Direct Transport between the serving wire center and the access tandem.

Direct Transport is available via the following Direct Transport rate elements depending on the facilities provided:

- Voice Grade, LT-1 and LT-3 Direct Transport Channel Mileage Termination (CMT) rate elements; and
- Voice Grade, LT-1 and LT-3 Direct Transport Channel Mileage (CM) rate elements.

SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched T ansport Services (Cont'd)
 - b. Direct Transport Services (Cont'd)

The Direct Transport Channel Mileage Termination rate element provides for the termination of the interoffice facility at each end of the Direct Transport Service.

The Direct Transport Channel Mileage rate element provides for the interoffice transmission facilities between the customer designated offices specified above. The channel mileage charges apply per mile of interoffice transport, calculate as described in Section 4.3.8 following.

Direct Transport Services are not available to Remote Switching Systems, Remote Switching modules or end offices that do not have the necessary recording and measuring capabilities.

The rate application for Direct Transport Services is described in Section 4.3.2.D. Direct Transport is provided at the rates and charges set forth in Section 4.4.4.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephand</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transpor (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - c. Tandem-Switched Transport Services

The Company does not undertake to provide Tandem Switched Transport Service as described below, but may provide such service to customers in conjunction with Ameritech and or other interconnecting Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers (ILECS) and Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECS) where the Company may interconnect with such LECs and provide resale of the same. The rates and charges to customers will be determined on an individual case basis as set forth in the relevant tariffs of the applicable LEC

The Company reserves the right to provide Tandem Switched Transport Service in the future

Tandem-Switched Transport provides Switched Transport that is switched through a tandem switch, between the customer's serving wire center and the end offices subtending the tancem. Tandem Switched Transport is also available between an access tandem and end offices subtending that tancem. Tandem-Switched Transport consists of circuits ded cated to the use of a single customer from the serving wire center to this tandem and circuits used in common by multiple customers from the tandem to the end office.

The dedicated transport provided between the serving wire center and the tandem must be ordered as Direct Transport, as described in (b) preceding.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Bill

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - c. Tar dem-Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)

Tar dem-Switched Transport is composed of the following usa: je sensitive rate elements:

- The Tandem-Switched Termination element includes the non-distance sensitive portion of Switched Transport, and is assessed on a per access minute of use basis.
- The Tandem-Switched Facility element includes the clistance sensitive portion of Switched Transport and is a ssessed on a per access minute of use per mile basis as described in Section 4.3.12 following.
- The Tandem Switching element includes the access tandem switching associated with the

Tar dem-Switched Transport tariff and is assessed per access minute switched through the tandem.

Tandem-Switched Transport requires dedicated tandem trunk ports, as described in (6), and end office common trunk ports as described in Section 4.1.3.B.2. following.

The rate application for Tandem-Switched Transport rates is set froth in Section 4.3.2.D. Tandem-Switched Transport is provided at the rates at charges set forth in Section 4.4.1.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 1. Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - d. Dedicated Signaling Transport Services

Dedicated Signaling Transport provides for the transport of out of-band signaling information between the customerdesignated premises and the Company Signal Transfer Point (STP). It is available via the Switched Transport Signal Transfer Point Access optional feature.

2. Interface Groups

Interface Groups are provided for terminating the Switched Transport at the customer's premises. These interface groups define transmission characteristics associated with the Entrance Facility and all transport facilities that interconnect with the Entrance Facility. Each Interface Group provides a specified premises interface (e.g., two-wire, four-wire, DS1, etc.).

The Interface group chosen may require multiplexing arrangements depending upon the Switched Transport Services being connected.

As a result of the customer's access order and the type of Company transport facilities serving the customer's premises, the need for signaling conversion or two-wire to four-wire conversion, or the need to terminate digital or high frequency facilities in channel bank equipment may require that Company equipment be placed at the customer's premises. For example, if a voice frequency interface is ordered by the customer and the Company facilities serving the customer's premises are digital, then Company channel bank equipment must be placed at the customer's premise in order to provide the voice frequency interface ordered by the customer.

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 3. Chargeable Optional Features

The Company does not undertake to provide Operator Transfer Service, Inward Assistance Service, Signal Transfer Point (STP) Access Service or Line Identification Database (LIDB) Access Service as described below, but may provide such optional service features to customers in conjunction with Ameritech and or other interconnecting Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers (ILECS) and Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECS) where the Company may interconnect with such LECs and provide resale of the same. The rates and charges to customers will be determined as set forth in the relevant tariffs of the applicable LEC.

The Company reserves the right to provide Operator Transfer Service, Inward Assistance Service, Signal Transfer Point (STP) Access Service and Line Information Database Service in the future

a. Operator Transfer Service

Operator Transfer Service is an arrangement in which Company operators transfer end users to a designated customer, i.e., the end user request operator assistance from a customer who subscribes to Operator Transfer Service.

Nor -recurring, monthly recurring and usage sensitive rates and charges apply to Operator Transfer Service. Additionally, a charge specified in Section 4.4.1.D.1 following, is assessed the ::ustomer per call transferred.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. –<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 3. Chargeable: Optional Features (Cont'd)
 - b. Inward Assistance Service

Inward Assistance is an option, which provides for Operator to Operator assistance to attempt to determine the status of the line or for a general inquiry. The customer's operator may request assistance when a call originates outside of the LATA anc the terminating number is within the Company's service area. The types of Inward Assistance, which may be provided, are described below. The Company operator only provides Inward Assistance for InterLATA calls. Busy Line Ver fication (BLV) is performed when an InterLATA customer requests assistance from a Company operator to determine if the called line is in use. The operator will access an existing "verify" trunk group terminating at the end office of the requested number. The Company operator does not complete the telephone call for the end user initiating the verification request. Only one BLV attempt will be made per customer operator telephone call and charge applies whether or rot a conversation is detected.

PUBLIC	SERVICE COMMISSION
	OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 3. Chargeable Optional Features (Cont'd)
 - b. Inward Assistance Service (Cont'd)

- Busy Line Interrupt (BLI) is performed when the company operator interrupts a telephone call in progress after Busy Line Verification occurs. The operator will interrupt the busy line and inform the called party that there is a call waiting. The operator will only interrupt the call and will not complete the telephone call of the end user initiating the interrupt request. The operator will make only one BLI attempt per customer operator telephone call and a charge applies whether or not the called party releases the line.

- With Operator Assistance the Company Operator Services System (OSS) operator provides the customer's operator with general dialing or routing assistance. Inward calls from the customer's operator are routed over the trunks between the customer's premises and the Company TOPS Access Tandem serving the LATA. The customer will be charged for each Operator Assistance call.
- Verification and Interrupt charges will not apply if the requesting operator identifies the call as being to or from an official public emergency agency, and concerns official business involving such agency. An official agency is defend as a government agency which is operated by the federal, state or local government and has the capability and legal authority to provide prompt and direct aid to the public in emergency situations.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:	JUL	10	2000
------------	-----	----	------

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011.

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

SECTION 9(1) Stephanh Sai RY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - A. Switched Transport (Cont'd)
 - 4. Residual Charges

Residual Charges are rates and charges that may be assessed from time to time by the Company based upon expected and unexpected costs as well as on residual charges that may be charged by the Company's carrier from time to time. Examples of Residual Charges include a Competitive Access Provider Transport Residual Credit (CAPTRC) and charges applicable for differences in rates assessed for originating and terminating access minutes of use for services such as 50, 700, 900 and toll free numbers.

The rate application for the Residual Charge is set forth in Section 4.3.2.D and the rate is set forth in Section 4.4.1.

5. Dedicated Tandem Trunk Ports [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02008 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 4.1 <u>General</u> (Cont'd)
 - 4.1.3 Rate Categories (Cont'd)
 - B. End Office

The End Office rate category provides the local end office switching and end user termination functions necessary to complete the transmission of Switched Access communications to and from the end users served by the local end office. The End Office rate category includes the Local Switching and Information rate elements. In addition certain end office optional features are provided at charges set forth in Section 4.4.2.A.1.

1. The Local Switching rate element provides for (1) local end office switching, e., the common switching functions associated with the various Switched Access Service arrangements, (2) the termination of local transport at end offices, (3) the termination of common lines and Dedicated Access Lines at end offices and (4) intercept functions, e.g., the termination of certain calls at a Company intercept operator or recording.

Various Common Switching, transport Termination end Dedicated Access Line Termination optional features are available and are described n Sections 4.3.1 through 4.3.3 following.

2. Dedicated Trunk Port

The Dedicated Trunk Port provides for termination of direct facilities used by a single customer in and end office trunk port where traffic is transported between the serving wire center or the hub, and the end office. This rate is assessed for all trunk group services on a per LT-1 basis Each Voice Grade trunk that terminates in an end office port is assessed 1/24th of the LT-1 rate.

4.1.4 Ordering Options and Conditions [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> <u>Suy</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4.2 Obligations of the Customer

In addition to the obligation of the customer set forth in Section 2 preceding, the customer has certain specific obligations pertaining to the use of Switched Access Service. These obligations are as follows:

4.2.1 Report Requirements

Customers are responsible for providing the following reports to the Company, when applicable.

A. Jurisdictional Reports

When a customer orders Switched Access Service for both interstate and intrastate use, the customer is responsible for providing reports as the Company may reasonably request in order that the Company can determine the portion of the customer's service which is subject to interstate charges. Such Interstate charges will be determined by prorating interstate and intrastate traffic.

B. 500 NXX and 900 NXX Code Reports

When ordering 500 Access Service or 900 Access Service, the customer must report the appropriate NXX code(s) to be instituted in each Company office at which the customer identification function is performed. The report must be updated by the customer each time a change is scheduled to occur, i.e., when a new code is to be added or an existing code is to be deleted. Such updated reports shall be provided at least 20 business days prior to the effective date of the change in order to allow the Company sufficient time to implement the change.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE
OF KENTUCKY

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4.2 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd)

4.2.2 Supervisory Signaling

The Customer's facilities shall provide the necessary on-hook, off-hook, answer and disconnect supervision.

4.2.3 Trunk Group Measurement Reports

With the agreement of the customer, trunk group data in the form of usage in CCS, peg count and overflow for its end of all access trunk groups, where technologically feasible, will be made available to the Company. These data will be used to monitor trunk group utilization and service performance and will be based on previously arranged intervals and format.

4.2.4 Design of Switched Access Services

When a customer orders Switched Access Service on a per line or per trunk basis, it is the customer's responsibility to assure that sufficient access services have been ordered to handle its traffic.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 Rate Regulations

This section contains the specific regulations governing the rates and charges that apply for Switched Access Service.

4.3.1 Rate Zones [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Secu SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges

There are three types of rates and charges that apply to Switched Access Service. These are monthly recurring rates, usage rates and non-recurring charges. These rates and charges are applied differently to the various rate elements as set forth in (D) following.

A. Monthly Rates

Monthly rates are flat recurring rates that apply each month or fraction thereof that a specific rate element is provided. For billing purposes, each month is considered to have 30 days.

B. Usage Rates

Usage rates are rates that apply only when a specific rate element is used. These are applied on a per occurrence (e.g., access minute, message call transferred or query) basis. Usage rates are accumulated over a monthly period.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
SECTION 9 (1)
BY Stephand Bug
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHE() ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - C. Non-recurring Charges

Non-recurring charges are one-time charges that apply for a specific work activity (i.e., installation of new services or rearrangements of installed services). The types of non-recurring charges that apply for Switched Access Service are: administrative, design and central office connection, customer connection, rearrangement, 500 and 900 Access Services. Certain Optional Features also have separate non-recurring charges as described in (7) following. Application of non-recurring charges for service rearrangements is described in (5) following. The application of non-recurring charges to Data Base Services is cescribed in (8) following. The application of non-recurring charges for Switched Transport Services is described in (10) following.

- 1. Administrative Charge [RESERVI:D FOR FUTURE USE]
- 2. Design and Central Office Connection Charge

The Design and Central Office Connection Charge applies to each service installed, and is charged once per line for line side services. For customers requesting the installation or rearrangement of a single trunk, customer requesting the installation or rearrangement of a single trunk, customers requesting the installation or rearrangement of a single trunk, customers requesting the installation or rearrangement of a single trunk, the Initial Trunk Charge will apply. For trunk side connections with multiple circuits at the same location for the same customer on the same order, with the work being completed at the same time, the Initial Trunk Charge will apply for the first trunk and the Additional Trunk Charge will apply for each additional trunk.

The non-recurring charges for design and central office connection are set forth in Section 4.4.3 following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4.3 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - C. Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)
 - 3. Customer Connection Charge

The Customer Connection Charge applies to each service installed, and is charged once per line or trunk. The charge applies whether the connection is physically made at the customer's serving office.

The Custo her Connection Charge will not apply to each Switched Access Se vice line or trunk activated on an Entrance Facility unless the customer requests testing of the activated lines or trunks.

The non-recurring charges for customer connection are set forth in Section 4.4 3 following.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand) Sul SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - C. Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)
 - 4. Service Rearrangements

Service rearrangements are changes to existing (installed) services which do not result in either a change in the minimum period requirements as set forth in Section 3.2.5 preceding. Changes which result in the establishment of new minimum period obligations are treated as disconnects and starts.

Changes in the physical location of the point of termination are treated as moves and are described and charged for as set forth in Section 4.3.4 following.

The Administrative Charge will apply for the following rearrangements only one such charge will apply per order. If the rearrangements are initiated by the Company, no charge will apply

- Change of customer assigned circuit identification
- Change of billing account number, when initiated by the customer
- Change of customer assigned test line number
- Change of customer of record where no physical relocation or rearrangement of the service is required. For the change of customer of record to be treated as a service rearrangement, the new customer must assume liability for both current and prior charges for the service.

For all other rearrangements, including the addition of, or modification to, optional features without separate non-recurring charges, both the Administrative Charge and the Design and Central Office Connection Charge will apply.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFFCTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - C. Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)
 - 5. 500 Access Service Changes

A non-recurring charge as specified in Section 4.4.3.B following applies to each change involving the additions or deletions of 500 NXX codes to be routed to a customer in the operating territory of the Company. For each Company end office switch or access tandem in which translation changes are required to route 500 NXX calls to the customer, a one-time charge applies.

Additional charges apply for the initial loading of each 500 NXX code required to establish service and to any subsequent changes to these codes. If the changed 500 NXX codes are used for both interstate and intrastate 500 Access Service, the Percentage for interstate Use (PIU) will apply. The Administrative Charge will also apply. The Design and Central Office connection and Customer Connection Charge will not apply.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> <u>Buy</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - C. Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)
 - 6. 900 Acces Service Charge

A non-recurring charge as specified in Section 4.4.3.B following applies to each change involving the additions or deletions of 900 NXX codes to be routed to a customer in the operating territory of the Company. For each Company end office switch or access tandem in which translation changes are required to route 900 NXX calls to the customer, a one-time charge applies.

Additional charges apply for the initial loading of each 900 NXX code required to establish service and to any subsequent changes to these codes. If the changed 900 NXX codes are used for both interstate and intrastate 500 Access Service, the Percentage for interstate Use (PIU) will apply. The Administrative Charge will also apply. The Design and Central Office connection and Customer Connection Charge will not apply.

7. Switched Transport Services [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephant</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates

Premium rates apply to all line-switched or trunk-switched Access Service Access minutes that originate from or terminate at end offices.

1. Tandem-Switched Transport Rate Application

Tandem-Switched Transport rates are usage sensitive and are applied equally to all customers except as noted herein. The rate application for the Tandem-Switched Transport rate elements is as follows:

a. Tar dem-Switched Termination Rate

Th∈ Tandem-Switched Termination rate is assessed to all switched access minutes that are transported over Tandem-Switched Transport Services.

b. Tandem-Switched Facility Rate

The Tandem-Switched Facility rate is assessed on a per minute per mile basis to all switched access minutes that are transported over Tandem-Switched Transport Services.

For the purpose of determining Tandem-Switched Facility mileage, distance will be measured as set forth in Section following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates (Cont'd)
 - 1. Tandem-Switched Transport Rate Application (Cont'd)
 - c. Tandem-Switching Rate

The Tandem Switching Rate is assessed on a per access minute basis for all switched access minutes that are transported over Tandem-Switched Transport Services.

When Tandem-Switched Transport is ordered to a class 4/5 switch, the Tandem-Switched Termination and the Tandem-Sw tched Facility rates will apply. The Tandem Switching rate will not apply to access minutes that originate or terminate at the end office portion of the switch.

The rate for Tandem-Switched Termination, Tandem-Switched Facility and Tandem Switching are set forth in Section 4.4.1.

2. Entrance Facility and Direct Transport Service Rate Application

Switched Transport Entrance Facilities and Direct-Trunked Transport Services are provided via transmission facilities operating at three different transmission speeds. For Entrance Facilities and Direct-Trunked Transport Facilities there are Voice Grade (300 to 3000 Hz), LT-1 (1.54.4 Mbps) or LT-3 (44.736 Mbps) facilities. There are three levels of Direct-Trunked Transport Facility rates corresponding to the available transmission speeds. Virtual Direct-Trunked Transport Services are only available via transmission facilities operating at 1.544 Mbps and are offered at the same rate as LT-1 Direct-Trunked Transport Services.

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

1001	
1000	JED:

ISSUED BY:
4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates (Cont'd)
 - 2. Entrance Facility and Direct Transport Service Rate Application (Cont'd)

The Direct Transport rate category is composed of two flat rated monthly re::urring rate elements. These are the Direct Transport channel Mileage Termination and the Direct Transport Channel Mileage rate elements.

One Direct Transport channel Mileage Termination charge applies per end of the Channel Mileage that terminates in the Company's serving area. The Channel Mileage Termination charge does not apply to D rect Transport circuits if the customer's serving were center and the end office are in the same central office.

The Direct Transport Channel Mileage charge applies per mile of interoffice transport provided over Direct Transport services. The Channel M leage charge does not apply to Direct Transport circuits if the interoffice mileage is zero. The mileage measurement for determining the monthly rate for Direct Transport Channel Mileage is specified in Section 4.3.8.

The rates for Entrance Facilities, Direct transport Channel Mileage Termination and Direct Transport Channel Mileage are set forth in Section 4.4.4 following.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BCU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

4. -<u>SWITCHE()</u> ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates (Cont'd)
 - 3. Optional Fayment Plan for LT-1 and LT-3 Switched Transport Services
 - A. General

The Optional Payment Plan is a provision that allows a customer to select LT-1 and LT-3 Direct Transport and Mu tiplexing Services over a 12, 36 or 60 month payment per od. Rates for service installed under any payment plan option will be determined on an Individual Case Basis (ICB), but in no event will such rates exceed the base monthly rate as set forth in this Tariff.

LT-3 OPP Entrance Facilities are comprised of two rate elements. LT-3 Service Packages (SP) and LT-3 Service Channels (SC). LT-1 and LT-3 Switched Transport Service rates and charges for which the OPP is available are listed in Sections 4.4.1 and 4.4.4 following. Customers subscribing to the OPP will be subject to non-recurring charges as specified in Section 4.4.4.B for installation and rearrangements of services covered by the plan.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates (Cont'd)
 - 4. Residual Charges

When applicable, Residual Charges will apply to Local Switching and Competitive Access Provider Transport Residual Credit (CAPTRC) originating and terminating minutes of use. Any applicable Residual Charges will be determined on an Individual Case Basis (ICB).

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Rates (Cont'd)
 - 5. Trunk Ports
 - a. End Office Common Trunk Port Rate

The End office Common Trunk Port rate will apply to all originating and terminating minutes of use between the access tandem and the end office. This rate will also be assessed on access minutes of use terminating outside of the dial tone office, and all minutes of use originating or terminating at a RSS/RSM. The Common Trunk Port rate is assessed whenever the Tandem-Switched Termination rate applies.

b. End Office Dedicated Trunk Port Rate

The End Office Dedicated Trunk Port rate is assessed on all direct-routed facilities between the serving wire center or the hub, and the end office terminating in an end office trunk port. The rate is assessed for all services on a per LT-1 basis. Each voice grade trunk terminating will be assessed 1/24th of the LT-1 rate. When Direct Transport is provided as an LT-3, LT-3 to LT-1 multiplexing is required.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY	
EFFECTIVE	

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.3 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)
 - 4.3.2 Description and Application of Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - D. Application of Charges
 - 6. Signaling System 7 (SS7) Signaling Charges [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE:

4. –<u>SWITCHE</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.3 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

4.3.3 Minimum Periods

Except as specified in Section 4.3.2.D.3. preceding, Switched Access Service is provided for a minimum period of one month.

4.3.4 Minimum Monthly Charge

Switched Access service is subject to a minimum monthly charge. The minimum monthly charge applies for the total capacity provided. The minimum monthly charge consists of the following elements:

The minimum monthly charge for the Local Switching and the Information Surcharge rate elements is the sum of the charges set forth in 4.4.2(A) and 4.4.5 following for the measured or assumed usage for the month.

For the Switched Transport rate element, the minimum monthly charge is assessed in terms of a Minimum Monthly Usage Charge (MMUC). If the actual Switched Transport usage charge for the month is higher than the MMUC, the customer pays the actual usage charge. If the Switched Transport usage charge is

lower than the MMUC, the customer pays the MMUC. The MMUC is determined as set forth in 4.3.4 following. Rates for actual usage are set forth in

4.4.1(A). Following the minimum monthly charge for chargeable optional features assessed on a per month basis is the monthly recurring rate.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHE</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.3 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

4.3.5 The MMUC billed to the clistomer for Switched Access Service ordered in BHMCs will be based on the total number of BHMCs (by type of BHMC) provided in or out of an end office (by type of service). For Switched Access Service ordered on a per line or trunk basis, the MMUC will be billed to the customer based on an assumed 30 BHMCs per line or trunk.

When actual measurement minutes do not exist, the customer will always be billed for the assumed average number of access minutes.

The MMUC (the minimum transport charge) does not apply at this time.

4.3.6 Moves

Moves involve a change in the physical location of one of the following:

- --The point of termination at the customer's or the customer's end user premises
- The customer's premises

When a customer moves to either a new location within the same building or to a different building, the Administrative Charge and the Customer Connection Charge for the service affected will apply. A move will not be considered a discontinuance and start of new service unless there is a substantial change in the services furnished to the Customer, but the Customer will be considered to be continuing under the existing services contract with no change in the minimum period requirements.

4.3.7 Measuring Access Minutes

Customer traffic to end offices will be measured (i.e., recorded or assumed) by the Company at end office switches or access tandem switches. Originating and terminating calls will be measured (i.e., recorded or assumed) by the Company to determine the basis for computing chargeable access minutes. In the event the customer message detail is not available because the Company lost or damages tapes or experienced recording system outages, the Company will estimate the volume of lost customer access minutes of use based on previously known values.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEO ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

4.3.8 Mileage Measurement

The mileage to be used to determine the Tandem-Switched Facility and Direct Transport Channel Mileage charges is calculated on the airline distance, as set forth in (A) through (D) following. The V&H coordinates method is used to determine the mileage. This method is set forth in the Exchange Carrier Association Tariff F.C.C. No. 4 for Wire Center Information (V&H coordinates).

To determine the rate to be billed, first compute the mileage using the V&H coordinates method. If the calculation results in a fraction of a mile, always round up to the next whole mile. For Tandem Switched Transport, multiply the rounded mileage by the Tandem-Switched Facility rate and the access minutes to be billed. If the Switched Transport is Direct Transport, then multiply the rounded mileage by the corresponding Direct Transport Channel Mileage rate.

- A. For Tandem-Switched Facilities ordered on a usage sensitive basis between the end office and the customer's serving wire center, mileage between the end office and the customer's serving wire center will be measured as described in (D) following
- B. When Direct Transport is ordered to the end office, Direct Transport Channel Mileage is measured on an airline distance basis between the end office and the customer's serving wire center.
- C. When a customer orders either Tandem Switched Transport or Direct Transport to a Hest office, the airline mileage between the customer's serving wire center and the Host office will be calculated using the V&H coordinate method.
- D. When a customer orders Direct Transport Services from its serving wire center to an access tandem, the mileage used to determine the monthly rate for the Direct Transport Channel Mileage is calculated on the airline mileage basis, between the customer's serving wire center and the access tandem. The V&H Coordinate Method is used to determine both mileage components.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) RY: Stephan() BUI

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.3 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

4.3.8 Mileage Measurement

E. When a customer orders Direct Transport Services between its serving wire center and a tandem or a hubbing location or between a hub and an end office, the mileage used to determine the monthly rate for the Direct Transport Channel Mileage is calculated on the airline mileage basis, between the customer's serving wire center and the access tandem or hub, or between the hub and the end office, respectively. The V&H Coordinate Method is used to determine the mileage for each of the service configurations.

4.3.9 Information Surcharge

The Information Surcharge is a charge to recover costs that have been assigned to the intrastate information category through Parts 67 and 69 of the Commission's Rules.

The Information Surcharge is assessed to the customer based on the total number of access minutes. The rates are set forth in Section 4.4.5 following. The application of these rates is as set forth in Section 4.3.2.D preceding.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

Rate

4. -<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges

4.4.1 Switched Transport

Α.	Usage Charges			
	Tandem-Switched Termination - Per Access Minute	ICB		
	Tandem-Switched Facility - Per Access Minute Per Mile	ICB		
	Tandem-Switchinc - Per Access Minute	ICB		

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED BY:

ISSUED:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Rate

4. –<u>SWITCHEL) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.1 Switched Transport (Cont d)

A. Usage Charges (Cont'd)

Premium Rates

Residual ChargeICB- Originating - Per Access MinuteICB- Terminating - Per Access MinuteICB- Competitive Access ProviderICBTransport Residual Credit (CAPTRC)ICB- Originating - per Access MinuteICB- Terminating - per Access MinuteICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

-

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.1 Switched Transport (Cont'd)

Α.	Usage Charges (Cont'd)	<u>Rate</u>
	Common Multiplexing - Per Access Minute	ICB
	Host-Remote Transport Termination - Per Access Minute	ICB
	Host-Remote Transport Facility - Per Access Minute	ICB
В.	Network Blocking Charge	ICB
C.	Non-chargeable Cotion Features	

[RESERVED FOF' FUTURE USE]

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BUU

4. –<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.1 Switched Transport (Cont d)

D.	Chargeable Optional Features		<u>Rate</u>
	1.	Operator Transfer - Per Call Transferred	\$0.48
	2.	Inward Assistance Service - Per Busy Line Verification - Per Busy Line Interrupt - Per Operator Assistance	\$0.99 \$1.20 \$ 0.48

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO SO7 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

4. -SWITCHEL) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

Rates and Charges (Cont'd) 4.4

4.4.2 End Office

Α.

Local Switching	Rate
Premium Rates	
Circuit Switched Line - Per Access Minute*	ICB
Circuit Switched Trunk - Per Access Minute	ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL TO 2000 **EFFECTIVE:**

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.2 End Office (Cont'd)

C.	Trunk Ports		<u>USOC</u>	Rate
	1.	Common Trunk Port - Per Access Minute		\$0.000425
	2.	Dedicated Frunk Port - Per LT-1 Trunk Port Per Month	PT8GX	\$1 36.21

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 <u>Rates and Charges</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.4.2 End Office (Cont'd)
 - D. Local Switching Optional Features
 - 1. Common Switching Optional Features

	<u>USOC</u>	Monthly <u>Rate</u>	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
Direct Inward Dialing (DID) Trunk Termination - Per Trunk Termination	ND2	\$ 21.25	\$ 89.08
Flexible Automatic Number Ident fication - Per CIC per End Office	CF3FP	\$ 1.04	None
PSP Line Identification - Per line equipped	CF3FP	\$ 1.04	None
Calling Billing Number Delivery (Automatic Number Identification) - Per Message	ANI	\$.000255	None
Basic Initial Message Delivery - Per Message		\$.000510	None

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

- 4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)
 - 4.4.2 End Office (Cont'd)
 - D. Local Switching Optional Features (Cont'd)
 - 2. Transport Termination Non-chargeable Options [RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

3.	Transport Termination Chargeable Options	Non-recurring <u>Charge</u>	
	Tandem S _' gnaling (Per Trunk Group)		
	- Multifreq.ience (MF)	\$ 244.80 \$ 244.80	
	- Multifreq.ıence (MF) - Signalinu System 7 (SS7)	\$ 244.80 \$ 244.80	

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy

EFFECTIVE:

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEO ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges

A. Installation and Rearrangement Charges

	Design and Central Office Connection Charge <u>per Line or Trunk</u>	Customer Connection Charge <u>per Line or Trunk</u>
Line Side	\$ 255.00	\$ 425.00
Rearrangement Charges	\$ 255.00	

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

A. Installation and Rearrangement Charges (Cont'd)

	Design and Central Office Connection Charge <u>per Line or Trunk</u>	Customer Connection Charge <u>per Line or Trunk</u>
Trunk Side		
-New Installations - Initial Trunk - Additional Trunk	\$ 85.00 \$ 21.25	\$ 12.75
-Rearrangement Charges - Initial Trunk - Additional Trunk	\$ 85.00 \$ 24.25	\$ 2.75

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY:_Stephan() BW

EFFECTIVE:

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

A. Installation and Rearrangement Charges (Cont'd)

- Translations Only Rearrangements	<u>Charge</u>
 Serving Class Routing Per Trunk Group per End Office 	\$ 42.50
and/or Tandem, as applicable	\$ 59.50
 CIC Code Level/ Alternate Routing per CIC Code per Trunk Group per End Office 	\$ 42.50
and or Tandem, as applicable	\$ 29.27

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street. Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephan BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHED ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

Charge

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

A. Installation and Rearrangement Charges (Cont'd)

	Charge	
-Software Translations Trunk rearrangements	\$ 42.50	
- Per Trunk per End Office and/or Tandem, as applicable	\$ 8.50	
 Records Only for Changes to: Billing Account Number Circuit ID Number Test Line Number Customer of 		
Record - Tandem to Direct		
End Office Rerouting or End		
Office to Tandem Rerouting - Per Order	\$ 42.50	
- LT-1 (1.544 Mbps) Clear Channel Capability	<u>USOC</u>	<u>Charge</u>
Option Rearrangements - Per LT-1 Direct Transport Channel	CZ6	\$ 297.50

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BW

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:				
ISSUED.	100	11	n	
	0.0	ιJ		-

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38

4. -<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

B. 500 Access Service and 900 Access Service

Additions or changes to Routed to a Customer	50(NXX codes	USOC	<u>Charge</u>
 Per Company End C Access Tandem ir changes are requi 	which translation		
 Assembly of Rate an (applies only on initial 500 Access Service 	al request for	NRB5B	\$ 29.75
 Activation or deactiv 500 NXX code conta request 		NRB5C	\$ 21.25
 Activation or deactiv additional 500 NXX in the same request 	code contained	NRB5D	\$ 8.50

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephan</u> <u>BUU</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

B. 500 Access Service and 900 Access Service (Cont'd)

Additions or changes to 900 NXX codes Routed to a Customer	<u>USOC</u>	<u>Charge</u>
 Per Company End Office Switch or Access Tandem in which translation changes are required 		
 Assembly of Rate and Route Pattern (applies only on initial request for 900 Access Service in a LATA) 	N9E	\$ 29.75
 Activation or deactivation of first 900 NXX code contained in a request 	NRG1X	\$ 15.30
- Activation or deactivation of each additional 900 NXX code contained in the same request	NRGAX	\$ 5.53

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.3 Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

- C. Local Number Portability (LNP) Query Service <u>Rate</u>
 - 1. LNP Query - Per Query \$ 0.004447

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BU

EFFECTIVE:

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEL</u> ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.4 Switched Transport Services

	Α.	Monthly Rates
--	----	---------------

1.	Entrance Facilities	USOC Rate		
- Per Point of Termination				
	Voice Grade - Two Wire - Four Wire	EF2A2 EF2A4	\$ 19.98 \$ 35.28	
		Recurring Charges Optional Payment Plan		

LT-1 (1.544 Mbps)	 Monthly ICB	 <u>36 Mo.</u> ICB	<u>60 Mo.</u> ICB
=(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			

	PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
	EFFECTIVE:
	JUL 10 2000
Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

- 4.4.4 Switched Transport Services (Cont'd)
 - A. Monthly Rates (Cont'd)
 - 1. Entrance Facilities (Cont'd)
 - Per Point of Termination (Cont'd)
 - LT-3 (44.736) Electrical
 - Service Packages

		Monthly Extension		urring Chai al Paymer	
DS3	U <u>SOC</u> POGM 1	<u>Rate</u> ICB	<u>12 Mo.</u> ICB	<u>36 Mo.</u> ICB	<u>60 Mo.</u> ICB
DS3B	P CGM	ICB	ICB	ICB	ICB
DS3C	P CGM	ICB	ICB	ICB	ICB
DS3F	PDGM	ICB	ICB	ICB	ICB
DS3L	P DGM	ICB	ICB	ICB	ICB
DS3X	1 PCGM 1	ICB	ICB	ICB	ICB

	USOC	Rate
- Service Channel		\$ 340.00

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stokan()</u> <u>BU</u> SECSTORY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

- 4.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)
 - A. Monthly Rates (Cont'd)
 - Entrance Facilities (Cont'd)
 Per Point of Termination (Cont'd)

LT-3 (44.736) Optical

- Service Packages

	Monthly Extension	Recurring Charges Optional Payment Plan		
LISOC	<u>Rate</u>	<u>12 Mo.</u>	<u>36 Mo.</u>	<u>60 Mo.</u>
D S301 2	\$10,710	ICB	ICB	ICB
DS302 4	\$16,065	ICB	ICB	ICB

	USOC	Rate
- Service Channel		\$ 255.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephene Kard Kard

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

Rates and Charges (Cont'd) 4.4

4.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)

Monthly Rates (Cont'd) Α.

		<u>USOC</u>	<u>Rate</u>
2.	Direct Transport Channel		
	Mileage Termination		
	- Per Point of Mileage		
	Termination		
	- Voice Grade	CZ8	\$ 12.54

			Recurring Charges Optional Payment Plan		
	USOC	Monthly	<u>12 Mo.</u>	<u>36 Mo.</u>	<u>60 Mo.</u>
- LT-1 (1.544 Mbps)					
	CZ8X1	\$ 68.85	ICB	ICB	ICB
- LT-3 (44.736 Mbps)					
	CZ8X1	\$ 318.75	ICB	ICB	ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Bell SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)

A. Monthly Rates (Cont'd)

3.	Direct Transport	<u>USOC</u>	<u>Rate</u>
	Channel Mileage		
	- Voice Grade		
	Per Mile	CZ8	\$ 1.15

				urring Cha al Paymer	
	LSOC	Monthly	<u>12 Mo.</u>	<u>36 Mo.</u>	<u>60 Mo.</u>
- LT-1 (1.544 Mbps)					
	· YTX1	\$ 21.25	ICB	ICB	ICB
- LT-3 (44.736 Mbps)					
	· YTX2	\$ 102.00	ICB	ICB	ICB

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 307 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. –<u>SWITCHEI) ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

- 6.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)
 - A. Monthly Rates (Cont'd)

5. Switched Transport Multiplexing - LT-1 to Voice Grade

- Per Multiplexer

				Recurring Charges Optional Payment Plan		
		<u>LSOC</u>	Monthly	<u>12 Mo.</u>	<u>36 Mo.</u>	<u>60 Mo.</u>
		MKW11	\$ 280.50	ICB	ICB	ICB
6.	Dedicated Tandem Trunk Port			US	<u>50C</u>	Rate
	- Per LT-1 Trunk Port			PT	8UX	\$ 118.23

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		UL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephane</u> BUL SECTION THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEL</u> ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

- Voice Grade

4.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)

B. Non-recurring Charges

Design	Customer		
Central Office	Connection		
Connection	Charge		
Charge	per		
per circuit	termination		
NRBLD	NRBLC		
\$ 148.75	\$ 233.75		

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephane</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

4. -<u>SWITCHEL</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

4.4.4 Switched Transport services (Cont'd)

B. Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd)

	Design Central Office	Customer Connection
	Connection	Charge
	Charge per circuit <u>NRBLD</u>	per termination <u>NRBLC</u>
- LT-1 (1.544 Mbps)	ICB	ICB
- LT-3 (44.736 Mbps)	ICB	ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020:38 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephend Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -<u>SWITCHEI</u>) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.4	Rates	and	Charges	(Cont'd)	

4.4.5 Information Surcharge

Premium Rate	<u>Rate</u>

- Per Originating Access Minute ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Suy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

4. -SWITCHEL) ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

4.5 Rate Zone Office Assignment

[RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE !

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Bue SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

3 Section 5

ì.

)

)

5. DEDICATED SERVICES DE CRIPTIONS AND TECHNICAL STANDARDS

5.1 General

The various types of Carrier service offerings are described below. Carrier services are billed at predetermined monthly rates. Recurring charges are billed in advance of the month in which service is performed. In addition, the optional features and any extraordinary installation costs other than recurring and non-recurring charges may apply as described herein. Customers requesting these services may subscribe to services on a month-to-month basis, or for term discount plans of 1 to 5 years. Customers subscribing to a term discount plan may receive a discount on charges for these arrangements. Agreements for services in excess of 5 years will be negotiated on an ICB.

5.2 Service Configurations

There are two types of service configurations over which Carrier's services are provided: point-to-point service and multipoint service.

5.2.1 Point-To-Point Service

Point-To-Point Service connects two Customer-designated premises, either on a directly connected basis or through a hub where multiplexing functions are performed.

5.2.2 Multipoint Service

Franklin, MA 02038

Multipoint Services connect three or more Customer designated premises through a Carrier hub. There is no limitation on the number of locations connected via multipoint service. However, when more than three points are provided in tandem, the quality of service may be degraded. Multipoint service may be provided where technically possible. If Carrier determines that the requested characteristics for a multipoint service are not compatible, the Customer will be advised and given the opportunity to change the order within 60 days.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE		
EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000		
PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> BW SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION		

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:
5.3 Contract Rates – Special Pricing Arrangements – ICB

- 5.3.1 In lieu of the rates otherwise set forth in this tariff, rates and charges, including minimum usage, installation, special construction and recurring charges for Carrier's services may be established at negotiated rates on an ICB, taking into account the nature of the facilities and services, the costs of construction and operation, the volume of traffic, the length of service commitment by the Customer, and use of facilities by other customers. Such arrangements shall be considered Special Pricing Arrangements, the terms of which will be set forth in individual Customer contracts. However, unless otherwise specified, the terms, conditions, obligation and regulation set forth in this tariff shall be incorporated into, and become a part of, said contract, and shall be binding on Carrier and Customer. Specialized rates or charges will be made evailable to similarly situated customers on a non-discriminatory basis and will be filed with the Commission as part of this Tariff.
- 5.3.2 In addition to any rate or charge established by the Carrier, the Customer will also be responsible for any recurring or non-recurring charges imposed by local exchange telephone companies incurred by or on behalf of the Customer in establishing and maintaining service. Such charges may be billed by the Carrier or directly by the local exchange company, at the Carrier's option.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BW

EFFECTIVE:

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

5.4 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications

The following service descriptions and technical specifications will apply to Carrier's services. When references to Bellcore Technical Publications on file with the F.C.C. are made for performance criteria, the criteria will be considered objectives for Carrier's performance. In no case should the reference to these Bellcore standards be construed as creating any warranties on the part of Carrier. Technical publications are available for review by the Customer upon request.

5.4.1 Voice Grade Service (DS-0)

A Voice Grade Facility is a channel which provides voice frequency transmission capability in the normal frequency range of 300 to 3000 HZ and may be terminated as analog two-wire or four wire, or where facilities permit, as a four-wire in a digital format when used in conjunction with another Voice Grade Facility termination at the other end. Voice Grade Facilities are provided between Customer designated locations or between a Customer designated location and a Carrier's hub.

Transmission specifications are defined in Bellcore Technical Reference TR-TSY-000335, issue 2 and PUB 41004, Table 4, and those publications referenced therein for Voice Grade frequency (300-3000hertz Voice Grade Transmission).

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9(1) BY Stephand Bur SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 5.4 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.1 Voice Grade Service (DS-0) (Cont'd.)

Specific service offering; and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

A.		el Termination ermination)	Monthly <u>Rate</u>		Nonrecurring Charge
	1.	Two-Wire - Minimum - Maximum	\$ ICB \$ ICB		\$ ICB \$ ICB
	2.	Four-Wire - Minimum - Maximum	\$ ICB \$ ICB		\$ ICB \$ ICB
	Channel Mileage - Minimum - Maximum			<u>Per Mi</u>	le
В.				\$ ICB \$ ICB	
				<u>Per Te</u>	ermination
- Channel Mileage Term		nnel Mileage Termin	ation	\$ ICB	

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 5.4 <u>Service Descriptions and Technic al Specifications</u> (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.2 Digital Data Service (DDS) (Cont'd.)

A Digital Data Channel is ϵ channel for duplex four-wire transmission of synchronous serial data at rates of 2.4 4.8, 9.6, 19.2, 56, or 64 Kbps. The actual bit rate is a function of the channel interface selected by the Customer. The channel provides synchronous service with timing provided by Carrier, through Carrier facilities to the Customer in the received bit stream. Digital Data channels are provided only between Customer designated locations and/or between Customer designated locations and a Carrier's hub.

Specific service offerings and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

A. Channel Termination

(Per Termination)	Monthly	Nonrecurring
- 2.4 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
- 4.8 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
- 9.6 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
- 19.2 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
- 56.0 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
- 64.0 kbps	\$ ICB	\$ ICB

Der Mile

B. Channel Mileage Facility

Perivile
\$ ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> <u>BU</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

5.4 <u>Service Descriptions and Technic al Specifications</u> (Cont'd.)

5.4.2 Digital Data Service (DDS) (Cont'd.)

Specific service offering: and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB). (Ccnt'd.)

C.	Channel Mileage Termination	Per Termination
	- 2.4 kbps	\$ ICB
	- 4.8 kbps	\$ ICB
	- 9.6 kbps	\$ ICB
	- 56.0 kbps	\$ ICB
	- 64.0 kbps	\$ ICB
	- 64.0 kbps	\$ ICB

5.4.3 DS-1 Service

DS-1 Service, or Digital Signal Level 1 Service, is a channel for the transmission of 1.5644 Mbps data. The actual bit rate and framing format is a function of the channel interface selectec by the Customer. DS-1 Channels are provided between Customer designated locations and between Customer designated locations and a Carrier's hub.

Technical standards are defined in Bellcore Technical Reference TR-NPL-000054, TR-TSY-000342, TR-TSY-000194, and PUB 62508, PUB 62411, PUB 62411A.

5.4.4 Type I Channels

Type I digital channels are provided where both endpoints of a channel are served by the Company's network.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stedrand</u> Bus SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 5.4 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.5 Type II Channels

Type II digital channels are provided where at least one endpoint of a channel is served by the network of an entity with whom the company's network is interconnected; such channels are provided via a combination of the Company's facilities and the facilities of the interconnected entity. Rates for the portions of the service provided over the company's facilities are based on the rates for the corresponding Type I Channel rates. Rates for the portion of the service provided over the interconnected entity are based on the rates charged the Company by the interconnected entity. The Company may apply a service charge or mark-up to the rates charged the Company by the interconnected entity.

5.4.6 DS-3 Service

DS-3 Service, or Digital Signal Level 3 Service, is a channel for the transmission of 44.736 Mbps data. The actual bit rate and framing format is a function of the channel interface selected by the Customer. DS-3 Channels are provided between Customer designated locations and/or between Customer designated locations and a Carrier's hub. DS-3 service is provided with an electrical interface. As an option, this service may be provided to a Customer with an optical interface at the Customer's premises. Services with this option will terminate in Carrier's Optical Line Terminating Equipment (OLTE) located in Carrier's hub. The OLTE located at the Customer's premises is subject to the mutual agreement of the parties, and must be compatible with the OLTE located in Carrier's hub. The optical interface option is available only where facilities permit, and is offered on an Individual Case Basis (ICB)

Technical standards are defined in Bellcore Technical Reference TR-NPL-000054, TR-TSY-000342, TR-TSY-000194, and PUB 62508, PUB 62411, PUB 62411A.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIC OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE	N
		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000	
Y:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1) BV: <u>Stephand</u> BW SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION	,

ISSUED:

ISSUED B

5.4 <u>Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications</u> (Cont'd.)

5.4.7 DS-3 Packaging

DS-3 services may be or lered in multiples as specified in the following. These services are offered in the same configuration as DS-3 service (i.e. either electrical or optical interface), and with the same technical specifications.

A. High Capacity Services

Specific service offerings and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

			Monthly Roto	Nonrecurring
			Rate	Charge
1.		el Termination		
	(Per T	ermination)		
	а.	DS1 1.544 Mbps		
		- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
		- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
	b.	Capacity of 1 DS3 44.736 Mbps Inte	erface	
		- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	
		- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	
		-per DS3 Channel Installed		
		- Minimuni Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
		- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
	C.	Capacity o ² 3 DS3 44.736 Mbps Inte	erface	
		- Minimun Rate	\$ ICB	
		- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	
		- per DS3 Channel Installed		
		- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
		- Maximu n Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
			ΨICD	Ψ.ΟΟ

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street. Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 5.4 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.7 DS-3 Packaging

1.

DS-3 services may be or dered in multiples as specified in the following. These services are offered in the same configuration as DS-3 service (i.e. either electrical or optical interface), and with the same technical specifications.

B. High Capacity Services

Specific service offerings and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

rangen		Monthly Rate	Nonrecurring Charge
	nel Terminat _' on Fermination)	Male	ondigo
d.	Capacity c ^{-:} 6 DS3 44.736 Mbps In	terface	
	- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	
	- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	
	-per DS3 Channel Installed		
	- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
	- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
e.	Capacity c ⁻¹ 12 DS3 44.736 Mbps I	nterface	
	- Minimum Rate	- ·	
	- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	
	-per DS3 Channel Installed		
	- Minimum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
	- Maximum Rate	\$ ICB	\$ ICB
		•	

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Scy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

- 5.4 <u>Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications</u> (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.7 DS-3 Packaging (Cont'd.)
 - 1. High Capacity Services (Cont'd.)

Specific service offering;; and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

2. Channel Mileage

Monthly Rate **Channel Mileage Facility** a. (Per Mile) - 64 kbps \$ ICB \$ ICB - 1.544 Mbps \$ ICB - 44.736 Mbps **Channel Mileage Termination** b. (Per Termination) - 64 kbps \$ ICB - 1.544 Mbps \$ ICB - 44.736 Mbps \$ ICB

Term Discounts Percentages DS1 and DS3 sendces 36 months ICB % 60 months ICB %

5.4.8 Fractional DS-1 Service

3.

Fractional DS-1 service consists of 2 to 24 DS-0 or DDS channels between two Customer designated locations, utilizing DS-1 level facilities, and multiplexing arrangements.

Specific service offering: and rates will be defined by individual-case basis arrangements (ICB).

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Bud SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 5.4 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd.)
 - 5.4.9 Multiplexing Services

Multiplexing is provided in the following configurations:

M13 Multiplexing (ICB)

An arrangement that converts a 44.736 Mbps channel into 28 DS-1 channels using digital time division multiplexing.

DS-1 to DS-0 Multiplexing

An arrangement that converts a 1.544 Mbps channel into 24 channels for use with Voice Grade Facilities or DDS.

Multiplexing, per arranger ent	Monthly Rate
DS3 to DS1	
DS1 to Voice	\$ ICB
DS1 to DS0	\$ ICB
DS0 to Subrates	
- up to 20 2.4 kpt	os services \$ ICB
- up to 10 4.8 kpt	s services \$ ICB
- up to 5 0.6 kpt	s services \$ ICB

5.4.10 Customer Provided Equipment

Customer provided terminating equipment such as CSUs, multiplexers, and other terminating equipment may, at the Customer's request, be provided by the Customer, at the Customer's expense. Carrier makes no guarantees or warranties as to the performance of Customer provided equipment.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

5. DEDICATED SERVICES DESCR PTIONS AND TECHNICAL STANDARDS (Cont'd.)

5.5 Rate Categories

There are seven rate categories that may apply to Carrier's Services.

5.5.1 Channel Terminations (C⁻⁻) / Local Distribution Channel (LDC)

The Channel Termination Rate Category provides for the communications path between a Customer designated premises, and another Customer designated premises. Included as part of the Channel Termination is a standard channel interface arrangement which defines the technical characteristics associated with the type of facilities to which the Carrier's service is to be connected, and the type of signaling capability (if any). One channel Termination charge applies per Customer designated premises at which the service is terminated.

5.5.2 Channel Mileage Termination (CMT) - Fixed

This rate element applies per termination whenever there is mileage associated with the channel; a channel has mileage associated with it when the endpoints are located in geographic areas normally served out of separate Telephone Company end offices. Different charges may apply depending on whether the connection is a Type I (on-Net) or Type II (off-net) connection.

5.5.3 Channel Mileage (CM) - Fer Mile

This rate element applies whenever there is mileage associated with the channel. The unit rate is multiplied by the number of miles (Interoffice Mileage) between the two Telephone end offices that normally serve the geographic areas in which the endpoints of the channel are located. Interoffice Mileage is determined according to the V&H coordinates method set forth in Section 5.7. Fractions of a mile are rounded up to the next whole mile before rates are applied. Different charges may apply depending on wheth ar the connection is a Type I (on-Net) or Type II (off-net) connection.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
SECTION 9 (1)
BY Stephand Bill
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

5.5 Rate Categories (Cont'd.)

5.5.4 Optional Features and Functions

The Optional Features and Functions Rate Category provides for optional services which may be added to a Carrier's service to improve its quality or characteristics to meet specific communications requirements. These services are not necessarily identifiable with specific equipment, but rather represent the end result in terms of performance characteristics which may be obtained. These characteristics may be derived using various corr binations of equipment.

5.5.5 Extraordinary Charges

From time to time, customers may request special services not addressed specifically by rate elements in this tariff, or services to locations that may cause Carrier to incur extraordinary expenses not contemplated in the provision of standard service offerings. These costs include, but are not limited to:

- Additional construction costs
- Building space rental or rights-of-way costs
- Additional equipment
- Special facilities routing

In these cases, the Customer will be billed additional charges computed on an ICB. The Commission prior to the provision of such service shall approve special services not addressed in this tarifl.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Scot SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

- 5.5 Rate Categories (Cont'd.)
 - 5.5.6 Volume Discounts

Discounts for specified dc lar volumes of traffic to a specific location or aggregate dollar volumes may apply as specified in this tariff, to customers that subscribe to substantial volumes of Carrier's services.

5.5.7 Term Discounts

Customers will be eligible for discounts for executing agreements for services for 1 to 5 years, as specified in this tariff.

5.6 Application of Rate Elements

The rate elements described in F1 of this tariff will be applied as follows:

- 5.6.1 Point-To-Point Services
 - Channel Terminations (when applicable)
 - Channel Mileage (when applicable)
 - Optional Features and Functions (when applicable)
 - Extraordinary Charges (when applicable)
 - Volume Discounts (when applicable)
 - Term Discounts (when applicable)
- 5.6.2 Multipoint Services
 - Channel Terminations (one per designated Customer location)
 - Channel Mileage (when applicable)
 - Optional Features and Functions (when applicable)
 - Extraordinary Charges when applicable)
 - Volume Discounts (when applicable)
 - Term Discounts (when applicable)

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Bud SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

5.7 Regulations and Computations of Mileage

- 5.7.1 Calls originating in one time period and terminating in another will be billed in proportion to the rates in ϵ fect during different segments of the call.
- 5.7.2 All times refer to local time.
- 5.7.3 All <u>inter-city</u> services are rated according to the mileage between the Carrier's Point of Presence in each city.
- 5.7.4 Airline mileage, used in connection with determining rates for <u>intercity</u> portions of services and facilities, is obtained by using the "V" and "H" coordinates assigned to each point as set forth in (e) below. This procedure is referenced in the AT&T Tariff FCC No. 10. To determine the airlines distance between any two locations, proceed as follows:
 - A. Utilize the "V" and "H" coordinates for each Customer designated location.
 - B. Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates of each of the locations. Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates.
 - C. Square each difference obtained in step (ii) above.
 - D. Add the square of the "V" difference and the "H" difference obtained in step (iii) above.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSK OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
		JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:01 SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan But

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

5. DEDICATED SERVICES DESCRIPTIONS AND TECHNICAL STANDARDS (Cont'd.)

- 5.7 Regulations and Computations of Mileage (Cont'd.)
 - 5.7.4 (Cont'd.)
 - E. Divide the sum of the square by 10. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained.
 - F. Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the airline mileage.

G. Formula =
$$(V1 - V2)^2 + (H1 - H2)^2$$

10

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED: ISSUED BY:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - Pr⊛sident TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

5. DEDICATED SERVICES DESCRIPTIONS AND TECHNICAL STANDARDS (Cont'd.)

5.8 Back Billing

Carrier shall be entitled to revise to lls previously rendered to adjust for previously rendered unbilled service, or adjust upwarc a bill previously rendered, assuming that the customer was aware of the unbilled services during the period the services were unbilled, for a period of six years after the service was rendered.

5.9 Taxes

5.9.1 Sales, Use and Excise Taxes

In addition to all recurring, non-recurring, usage or special charges, Customer shall also be responsible for anc shall pay all applicable federal, state and local sales, use and excise taxes.

5.10 Temporary Promotional Programs

The Carrier may establish temporary promotional programs, wherein it may waive or reduce recurring or non-recurring charges, to introduce a present or potential Customer to a service not previously received by the Customer. The terms of promotional programs will be filled with the Kentucky Public Service Commission subject to the requirements of applicable law.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.- CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS SERVICE

The Company will provide Carrier Common Line Access Service (Carrier Common Line Access) to customers in conjunction with Switched Access Service provided for in this Tariff.

6.1 General Description

Carrier Common Line Access provides for the use of end user's Company provided common lines by customers for access to slich end users to furnish Interstate Communications. The rate elements included in Carrier Common Line Access are the Primary Inter-exchange Carrier Charge (PICC), the Carrier Common Line Charge (CCL) and the Special Access Surcharge, if applicable.

The PICC is a flat monthly charge that applies for each end user's common lines. The PICC applies on a per pre-subscribed line basis. The individual rate elements, types of lines, and specific rate applications are further described in Sections 6.5 and 6.8, following.

The CCL is a usage sensitive element that applies to switched access minutes of. The rules for applying CCL rates are provided in Section 6.8, following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020 38 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.2 Limitations

6.2.1 Exclusions

Neither a telephone number nor detail billing is provided with Carrier Common Line Access. Additionally, directory listings and intercept arrangements are not included in the rates and charges for Carrier Common Line Access.

6.2.2 Access Groups

All line side connections provided in the same access group will be limited to the same features and operating characteristics.

All trunk side connections provided in the same access group will be limited to the same features and operating characteristics.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.3 Undertaking of the Company

6.3.1 Provision of Service

Where the customer is provided Switched Access Service under other sections of this Tariff, the Company will provide the use of Company common lines by a customer for access to end users at rates and charges as set forth in Section 6.9 following.

6.3.2 Interstate and Intrastate Use

The Switched Access Services provided by the Company includes the Switched Access Service provided for both interstate and intrastate communications. The Carrier Common Line Access rates and charges as set froth in 6.9 following apply to interstate Switched Access Service across minutes as prorated to interstate and intrastate use (by Percent Interstate Use – PIU) as appropriate.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE **EFFECTIVE: ISSUED:** JUL 10 2000 **ISSUED BY:** Michael Angi - President PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC SECTION 9 (1) 124 Grove Street Suite 220 BY Stephand) Sul Franklin, MA 02038 SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.4 Obligations of the Customer

6.4.1 Switched Access Service Requirements

The Switched Access Services associated with Center Common Line Access shall be ordered by the customer under other sections of this Tariff.

6.4.2 Supervision

The customer facilities at the premises of the ordering customer shall provide the necessary on-hook and off-hook supervision.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.- <u>CARRIER COMMCIN LINE ACCESS SERVICE</u> (Cont'd)

6.5 Description of the Primary Inter-Exchange Carrier Charge

A Primary Inter-exchange Carrier Charge (PICC) applies for each end user's common line.

6.5.1 Assessment of the PICC

For end user lines which have Pre-subscribed Interexchange Carrier (PIC), as described in Section 7.2, the PICC applies to the selected IC on a per pre-subscribed line basis. This charge also applies when a telecommunications carrier has purchased local exchange service for resale. The type of PICC charge is based on the classification of the ultimate end user.

When an end user's line has two PICs, one for interLATA calls and one for IntraLATA calls, the PICC is billed to the InterLATA pre-subscribed carrier.

If the end user line is not pre-subscribed to a primary interexchange carrier, the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user. If the local exchange service is provided on a resold basis by a telecommunications carrier other than Company, and the end user has not chosen a pre-subscribed interexchange carrier, the reseller will be assessed the PICC.

Upon timely notification (at least 15 days before the date on which the Company) determines the IC's PICC liability for a given month) from an IC to the Company that the IC has terminated long distance service for an end user for nonpayment or other violation of the IC s tariff, the Company will cease billing the PICC to the IC with respect to that enc user's license. The Company will bill the PICC directly to the end user until such time as the end user selects a new pre-subscribed IC. The IC will also furnish the Company with a copy of the end user notification or updated Customer Account Record Exchange (CARE) records for terminated end users, which indicate the date of end user notification and reason for termination.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY: Stephant Suy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- Description of the Primary Inter-e change Carrier Charge (Cont'd) 6.5
 - 6.5.2 Types of Lines

The PICC is assessed based on the number and type of lines that are presubscribed. The type of lines for which PICC applies corresponds to the types of lines for which End User Common Line charges (described in Section 7) apply. The types of lines for which PICC applies are:

Primary Residence Non-Primary Residence Multi-Line Business

Franklin, MA 02038

Regulations concerning the application of the PICC are contained in Section 6.8, following.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE **EFFECTIVE: ISSUED:** JUL 10 2000 **ISSUED BY:** PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, Michael Angi - President SECTION 9 (1) TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC RY. Stephand) Bu 124 Grove Street Suite 220 RECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.6 Determination of Usage Subject to Carrier Common Line Access Charges

Except as set forth herein, all Switched Access Service provided to the customer will be subject to Common Line Access charges.

When the customer reports interstate and intrastate use of Switched Access Service, the associated Carrier Common Line Access used by the customer for interstate will be determined as set forth in Section 6.8.5 following (Percent Interstate Use – PIU).

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.7 Resold Access Service

6.7.1 Scope

Where the customer is reselling MTS and or MTS-type service(s) on which the Carrier Common Line and Switched Access charges have been assessed, the customer may, at the option of the customer, obtain Switched Access Service under this tariff as set forth in Section 4 following for originating and or terminating access in the local exchange. Such Switched Access Service will have Carrier Common Line Access charges applied as set forth in Section 6.9 following. Rate regulation for the Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge (PICC) and the Carrier Common Line (CCL) charge are described in Section 6.8. In addition, the CCL will apply in accordance with the resale rate regulations set forth in Section 6.7.4 following. For the purposes of administering this provision:

- Resold interstate terminating MTS and MTS-type service(s) shall include collect calls, third number calls and credit card calls where the reseller pays the underlying carrier's service charges; and shall not include intrastate minutes use.
 - Resold interstate terminating MTS and MTS-type service(s) shall include collect calls, third number, credit card or intrastate minutes of use.

	PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE	
	EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000	
Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BV: Stechand Stud	
	SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION	

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Franklin, MA 02038

6.7 <u>Resold Access Service</u> (Cont'd)

6.7.2 Customer Obligations concerning the Resale of MTS and MTS-type Services

When the customer is reselling MTS and or MTS-type service as set forth in Section 6.7.1 preceding, the customer will be charged Carrier Common Line Access charges in accordance with the resale regulation as set forth in Section 6.7.4 following if the customer or the provider of the MTS service furnishes documentation for the MTS usage and or the customer furnishes documentation of the MTS-type usage. Such documentation supplied by the customer shall be supplied each month and shall identify the involved resol: I MTS and or MTS-type services.

When the customer is reselling MTS and or MTS-type service and is obtained access under this tariff, the customer will be assessed the PICC on a per presubscribed line basis. At the request of the reseller, with the concurrence of the provider of the MTS service, the PICC charges will be billed to the MTS provider. Both the reseller and the provider must furnish the Company with letters of authorization accepting such a billing arrangement and the provision of carrier data included in the bill detail.

The monthly period used to determine the minutes of use for resold MTS and or MTS type service(s) shall be the most recent monthly period for which the customer has received a bill for such resold service(s). This information shall be delivered to the Company, at a location specified by the Company, no later than fifteen (15) days after the bill date shown on the resold MTS and or MTS-type service bill. If the Company does not receive the required information, the previously reported information, as described preceding, will be used for the next two months. For any subsequent month, no allocation or credit will be made until the customer delivers the required documentation to the Company.

6.7.3 Resale Documentation Provided by the Customer

When the customer utilizes Switched Access Service as set forth in Section 6.7.2 preceding, the Company may request a certified copy of the customer's resold MTS or MTS-type usage billing from either the customer or the provider of the MTS or MTS-type Service. Requests for billing will related back no more than 12 months prior to the current billing period.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	·	JUL 10 2000
ISSUED DT.	Michael Angi - President	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011,
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220	SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Bill
	Franklin, MA 02038	SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.7 <u>Resold Access Service</u> (Cont'd)

6.7.4 Rate Regulations concerring the Resale of MTS and MTS-type Services

When the customer is provided an access group to be used in conjunction with the resale of MTS and or MTS-type services as set forth in Section 6.7.1 preceding, subject to the limitations as set forth in Section 6.2 preceding to calculate the adjustment of Carrier Common Line Access charges, the customers will be billed the Premium Access Charge per minute as set forth in Section 6.9 following.

A. Apportionment and Adjustment of Resold Minutes of Use

When the customer is provided with more than one access group in association with the resale of MTS and or MTS-type services, the resold minutes of use will be apportioned as follows:

1. Originating Services

The Company will apportion the resold originating MTS and or MTStype services and originating minutes of use for which the resale credit adjustment applies, among the access groups. Such apportionment will be based on the relationship of the originating usage for each access group to the total originating usage for all access groups in the LATA. For purposes of administering this provisions.

Resold originating MTS and or MTS-type services minutes shall be only those attributable to interstate originating MTS and or MTS-type minutes and shall not include collect, third number, credit card and intrastate minutes of use.

The resale credit adjustment shall apply for resold originating MTS and MTS-type services and minutes of use, provided Carrier Common Line and Switched Access Charges have been assessed on such services.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUI SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.7 <u>Resold Access Service</u> (Cont'd)

- 6.7.4 Rate Regulations concerning the Resale of MTS and MTS-type Services (Cont'd)
 - A. Apportionment an Adjustment of Resold Minutes of Use (Cont'd)
 - 2. Terminating Services

The Company will apportion the resold terminating MTS and or MTStype services and terminating minutes of use for which the resale credit adj.istment applies, among the access group. Such apportionment will be based on the relationship of the terminating usage for each access group to the total terminating usage for all access groups in the LATA. For the purposes of administering this provision:

Resold terminating MTS and or MTS-type services minutes shall be only those attributable to interstate terminating MTS and MTS-type (i.e., collect calls, third number calls, and credit card calls) and shall not include intrastate minutes of use or MTS or MTS-type minutes of use paid fc⁻ by another party.

The resale credit adjustment shall apply for resold terminating MTS and MTS-type services and minutes of use, provided Carrier Common Line and Switched Access Charges have been assessed on such services.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	3V: <u>Stephand</u> Buy OFCHETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.7 Resold Access Service (Cont'd)

- 6.7.4 Rate Regulations concerring the Resale of MTS and MTS-type Services (Cont'd)
 - B. Access Groups

When all the usage on an access group originates from and or terminates at end offices, Access charge per minute as set forth in Section 6.9 following will apply. The Access Minutes which will be subject to Carrier Common Line charges will be the adjusted originating interstate access minutes plus the adjusted terminating interstate access minutes for such access group.

The adjusted originating access minutes will be the originating interstate access minutes less the reported resold originating MTS and or MTS-type service minutes of use as set forth in (A)(1) preceding; but not less than zero. The adjusted terminating access minutes will be the terminating interstate access minutes less the reported resold terminating MTS and or MTS-type service minutes of use as set forth in (A)(2) preceding, but not less than zero.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - Pr⊛sident TOTALINK OF K⊞NTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephane</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.8 Rate Regulations

6.8.1 Rate Regulations Concerning Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge

The Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge (PICC) is a flat monthly charge that applies for each end user's common line. The PICC applies on a per pre-subscribed line basis. If the end user line is not pre-subscribed to an Interexchange Carrier (IC), the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user. When an end user's line has two Picas, one for interLATA and one for IntraLATA calls, the PICC is billed to the InterLATA pre-subscribed line.

PICC charges apply base: I on the classification of the ultimate end user.

A snapshot of all end user lines will be taken once per month to determine the presubscribed carrier. The number of lines per carrier will be accumulated from this snapshot by state, LATA, end office and end user line type. If an IC has more than one Carrier Identification Code, data will also be summarized by CIC.

The PICC is assessed based on the number and type of lines that are presubscribed to an individual carrier. The type of lines for which PICC applies corresponds to the types of lines for which End User Common Line charges (described in Section 7) apply. The types of lines for which PICC applies are:

Primary Residence Non-Primary Residence Multi-line Business

A. Primary Residence PICC

A Primary Residence Line is defined as the first local residence exchange service provided to any single service location. For Primary Residence Lines, the pre-subscribed interexchange carrier will be bill the Primary Residence PICC rate per pre-subscribed line, as set forth in Section 6.9 following. If the end user does not have a pre-subscribed IC, the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> BUI SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.8 <u>Rate Regulations</u> (Cont'd)

- 6.8.1 Rate Regulations Concerning Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge (Cont'd)
 - B. Non-Primary Residence PICC

When an end user is provided with more than one local residence exchange service at the same service location, only one line will be classified as Primary and all other lines are considered to be Non-Primary. If the customer orders more than one line at the same service location, the first line installed will be Primary. Otherwise, if services are ordered at different times, the date of installation for the same location will be used to designate the Primary line.

For Non-Primary Residence Lines, the pre-subscribed interexchange carrier will be billed the Non-Primary Residence PICC rate per pre-subscribed line, as set forth in Section 6.9 following. For any line that does not have a pre-subscribed IC, the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user.

C. Multi-Line Business

When an end user is provided more than one local business exchange service by the Company, and when the local business exchange service is provided under the general and or local exchange service tariffs, the Multiline Business PICC rate as set forth in Section 6.9 following applies to each such local busines: exchange service. For any line that does not have a presubscribed IC, the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.8 <u>Rate Regulations (Cont'd)</u>

6.8.1 Rate Regulations Concerning Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge (Cont'd)

D. If the end user line does not have a pre-subscribed interexchange carrier, the PICC will be assessed directly to the end user. If the local exchange service is provided on a resold basis by a telecommunications carrier other than the Company, the reseller will be assessed the PICC for a non-PIC situation.

If the end user line is pre-subscribed to a carrier that is reselling MTS and or MTS-like service (access reseller), the PICC may be billed to one of its MTS service providers if both the reseller and the provider have furnished the Company with a letter of authorization.

Terms and conditions relating to Primary Interexchange Carrier Charges described above shall apply to telecommunications services provided by carriers which purchase local exchange service for resale. PICC charges will apply, based on the classification of the ultimate end user.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> D BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 6.8 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)
 - 6.8.2 Billing of Usage Charges

Carrier Common Line charges will be billed to each Switched Access Service provided under this tariff in accordance with the regulations following except as set forth in Sections 6.7.4 preceding (Resale) and 6.8.5 following (Percent Interstate Use – PIU).

6.8.3 Measuring and Recording of Call Detail

When access minutes are used to determine Carrier Common Line charges, they will be accumulated using call detail recorded by Company equipment, except as otherwise may be provided for in this Tariff. The Company measuring and recording equipment will be associated with end office or local tandem switching equipment will record each originating and terminating access minute where answer supervision is received. The accumulated access minutes will be summed by the Company for each customer and then rounded to the nearest minute.

6.8.5 Percent Interstate Use (PIU)

When the customer reports interstate and intrastate use of in-service Switched Access Service, Carrier Common Line charges will be billed only to interstate Switched Access Service access minutes based on the data reported by the customer, except where the Company is billing according to actual by jurisdiction. Interstate Switched Access Service access minutes will, after adjustment as set forth in Section 6.7.4 preceding (Resale), when necessary, will be used to determine Carrier Common Line Charges.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTLICKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO SO7 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>Stephan</u> () <u>BU</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

6.9 Rates and Charges

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

3.9.1	Primary Interexchange Carrier Charge (PICC)No-PIC USOC		•	Rate per <u>Month</u>
	А.	Primary Residence - Per individual line	REB1A	\$ 1.04
		Non-Primary Residence - Per Individual line	REB7A	\$ 2.53
	В.	Multi-line Business - Per individual line or trunk	REB3A	\$ 4.31

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION		
EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE	

JUL 10 2000

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECHETARY OF THE COMMISSION

TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC

6.- CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

6.9 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

6.92	Carrier Common Line Charge	Rate
	- Originating Per Access Minute	\$.010364
	- Terminating Per Access Minute	ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 JUL 10 2000

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.- INTERSTATE ACCESS SERVICE

7.1 Interstate Access Service

The Company will provide its local exchange service customers with access to other Interstate carriers under its general and or local exchange tariffs.

7.1.1 General Descriptions

Interstate Access Service provides an end user with access to other carriers for Interstate toll services. End users will be charged an End User Common Line (EUCL) charge in conjunction with this Interstate access.

7.1.2 Limitations

Telephone numbers, deta billing, directory listings and intercept arrangements are not provided in conjunction with Interstate Access Service, but may be provided with the customer's basic loca exchanges services.

7.1.3 Undertaking of the Company

The Company will provide Interstate Carrier Access at rates and charges set forth in Section 7.1.6 following, as follows:

- A. An EUCL charge will apply to each end user exchange access line provided with interstate access under this tariff. This charge will be established when the end user obtains local exchange service from the Company.
- B. The Company will be responsible for contacts and arrangements with customers for billing of these End User Access charges.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> BUL SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.- INTERSTATE ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

7.1 Interstate Access Service (Cont'c)

7.1.4 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowances

Notwithstanding Section 2 the following regulations shall apply for Interstate Access Services:

 A. Minimum Period The minimum service period for which EUCL charges apply is the same as that in the general and or local exchange tariffs for the associated local exchange service.

- B. Cancellation of Application
 Interstate Access is canceled when the order for the associated local telephone exchange service is canceled. No cancellation charges apply.
- C. Change to Orders When changes are made to orders for local exchange service, any necessary changes will also be made for Interstate Access Service. No EUCL nonrecurring charges will apply for these changes.

D. Allowance for Interruptions When there is an interruption to local exchange service, an EUCL charge allowance will be provided as set forth local exchange service in Section 2.7.1 preceding.

E. Temporary Suspension of Service

When an end user temporarily suspends its local exchange services, onehalf of the monthly EUCL charge will be temporarily suspended for the time period the local exchange service is suspended.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION
7.- INTERSTATE ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

- 7.1 Interstate Access Service (Cont'c)
 - 7.1.5 Rate Regulations
 - A. Monthly EUCL charges will be billed to the end user of the associated local exchange service.
 - B. In addition to the EUCL charge, an End user Complex Line Port (EUCLP) charge is also assessed when end users are provided certain residential or multi-line local business exchange services by the Company under the general and or local exchange service tariff where the cost of the line port exceeds that of a clasic analog line port. These services include ISDN-BRI for residential customers and ISDN BRI, Centrex ISDN and ISDN-PRI for commercial customers. The EUCLP charge as set forth in Section 7.1.6 following, applies to each such line port.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

EFFECTIVE:

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.1 Interstate Access Service (Cont'c)

7.1.6 Rates and Charges

A. End User Common Line Charge:

	CURRENT	7/2000	7/2001	7/2002	7/2003	7/2004
Primary R	Residential				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	L
SLC	\$3.50	\$4.35	\$5.00	\$6.00	\$6.50	\$6.50
PICC	\$1.04	0	0	0	0	0
Non-Prim	ary Residential					
SLC	\$6.07	\$7.00	\$7.00	\$7.00	\$7.00	\$7.00
PICCC	\$2.53	0	0	0	0	0
Multi-line	Business					
SLC	\$9.20	\$9.20	\$9.20	\$9.20	\$9.20	\$9.20
PICC	\$4.31	\$4.31	\$4.31	\$4.31	\$4.31	\$4.31

B. End User Complex Line Port Charge:

	<u>USOC</u>	Rate Per Month
 End User Complex Line Port Line Port (EUCLP) ISDN BRI Per facility 		\$1.58
2 End User Complex Line Port (EUCLP) Centrex ISDN - per facility		\$1.58
3 End User Complex Line Port (EUCLP) ISDN PRI - Per Facility		\$1.58

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.2 Pre-subscription

- 7.2.1 General
 - A. Pre-subscription is a procedure where by an end user may select an Interexchange Carrier (IC) for interstate calls and designate to the Company that that carrier be used on all interstate calls from the customer's exchange access line without the need to use a special access code for that IC. This IC is referred to as the end user's Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC).
 - B. Pre-subscription of residence and business lines and or trunks is furnished in accordance with the detailed provisions of the Federal Communications Commission's Allocation Plan as set forth in Appendix B of its Memorandum Opinion and Order in CC Docket 83-1145, Phase 1, adopted May 31, 1985 and released June 12, 1985.
 - C. The non-recurring ::harge for pre-subscription, per line or trunk, is as follows:

	Non-recurring Charge
- per residence or business initial line or trunk	\$ 4.25
 per residence, business, public or semi-public additional line or trunk 	\$ 1 .45
 per public or semi-public initial pay telephone line 	\$ 4.25

This Charge is billed to the End User, who is the subscriber to the Company Exchange Service.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
1550ED B1.	Michael Angi - President	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY: Stephand BUD SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.2 <u>Pre-subscription</u> (Cont'd)

- 7.2.1 General (Cont'd)
 - D. The non-recurring charges for unauthorized changes to Presubscription are as follows:

Non-recurring Charge

- per Business or residence line or trunk \$18.00

The charge is billed to the IC submitting an unauthorized change for a subscriber to Telephone Exchange Service.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President	JUL 10 2000
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BW
		SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.- INTERSTATE ACCESS SERVICE (Cont'd)

7.3 International Blocking Service

- 7.3.1 General
- A. The International Blocking Service (IBS) is an optional end user service that provides end office blocking of 011+, 10XXX 011+ and I01XXXX011+ dialed calls. Originating 011+, 10XXX 011+ and 101XXXX011 dialed calls from exchange lines provisioned with the International Blocking Service will be blocked and routed to a recorded announcement.
- B. The International Blocking Service can be ordered on a per line / trunk basis. There is a non-recurring charge for installing IBS on new or existing exchange lines or trunks that is in addition to any other local exchange non-recurring charges that may apply. The non-recurring charge for international Blocking Service is charged on a per line or trunk basis as set forth in (C) following.
- C. International Blocking Service Rates

		Non-recurring
	USOC	Charge
International Blocking Service		
- Per Line or Trunk	RBVXC	\$ 2.96

ISSUED:		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION EFFECTIVE: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President	JUL 10 2000
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane) Bell

7.4 Blocking Access to 900 Service

7.4.1 General

The Company offers to its subscribers, where technically feasible, an option to block access to services offered on the 900 service access code. Blocking is offered at no charge for initial requests and on a one-time basis to any subscriber who subscribers to a new telephone number for a period of 60 days after the new number is effective.

A. For blocking requests and services other than those specified in paragraph A of this section, the following charges apply:

	Non-recurring Charges Subsequent Blocking
900 Blocking*	
- Per residence line or trunk	\$ 5.00
- Per business line or trunk	\$ 10.00

* Requests by subscribers to remove blocking are completed at no charge, but must be in writing

ISSUED:		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011.
	124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand BUI SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

7.5 Application of Charges to Resold Local Exchange Service

Terms and conditions relating to interstate Access Service and Pre-subscription changes, described in Sections 7.1 and 7.2 preceding, shall apply to telecommunications carriers, which purchase local exchange service for resale.

End User Common Line charges will apply, based on the classification of the ultimate end user as either Residence or Business.

Pre-subscription charges for residence and business lines or trunks will also apply to resellers of local exchange service, including the reduced rate for additional lines changed in a single request.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

8. SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS

8.1 Special Construction

8.1.1 Basis for Charges

Basis for Charges where the Company furnishes a facility or service for which a rate or charge is not specified in the Company's tariffs, charges will be based on the costs incurred by the Company (including return) and may include:

- A. nonrecurring charges;
- B. recurring charges;
- C. termination liabilities; or
- D. combinations of (a), (b), and (c).

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY Stephane But SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

8. <u>SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS</u> (Cont'd.)

- 8.1 Special Construction (Cont'd.)
 - 8.1.2 Termination Liability

To the extent that there is no other requirement for use by the Company, a termination liability may apply for facilities specially constructed at the request of a customer.

- A. The period on which the termination liability is based is the estimated service life of the facilities provided.
- B. The amount of the maximum termination liability is equal to the estimated amounts (including return) for:
 - 1. Costs to install the facilities to be provided including estimated costs for the rearrangements of existing facilities. These costs include:
 - a. equ pment and materials provided or used;
 - b. eng neering, labor, and supervision;
 - c. transportation; and
 - d. rights of way and/or any required easements;
 - 2. license preparation, processing, and related fees;
 - 3. tariff preparation, processing and related fees;
 - 4. cost of removal and restoration, where appropriate; and
 - 5. any other identifiable costs related to the specially constructed or rearranged facilities.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KIENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan</u> Buy
		SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

8. SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd.)

8.2 Non-Routine Installation And/Or Maintenance

At the customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours or (in the Company's sole discretion and subject to any conditions it may impose) in hazarcous locations. In such cases, charges based on the cost of labor, material, and other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 020:38	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

9. RECIPROCAL CC MPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS

9.1 <u>General</u>

Reciprocal Compensation Arrangements are available to Other Network Providers ("ONP's") who are also certified providers of local exchange service. Under a Reciprocal Compensation Arrangement, the Company compensates the ONP for Company traffic terminating on the ONP's network and the ONP compensates the Company for ONP traffic terminating on the Company's network.

The Carrier Common Line element shall not apply to Reciprocal Compensation Arrangements.

The Local Switching element shall apply to Reciprocal Compensation Arrangements.

The Local Transport element will apply to Reciprocal Compensation arrangements. The Local Transport element does not apply to traffic delivered over direct trunks to an end office where the ONP has ordered Expanded Interconnection Service at a Company end office switch or the Company has obtair ed similar interconnection at an ONP location.

The Company will pay transport charges for traffic that it terminates on a cellular carrier's network until such time as that carrier interconnects, through its own facilities or a third carrier's facilities, directly to a Company end office.

9.2 Measurement of Access Minutes and Determination of Balance

The Company and Other Network Provider will measure, on a monthly basis, the originating and terminating local usage

ISSUED:		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

10.- ADDITICINAL ENGINEERING, ETC.

In this section normally scheduled working hours are an employee's scheduled work period in any given calendar day (e.g., 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.) for the application of rates based on working hours.

10.1 Additional Engineering

Additional Engineering will be provided by the Company at the request of the customer only when:

- A. A customer requests additional technical information after the Company has already provided the technical information normally included on the Design Layout Report.
- B. Additional engineering time is incurred by the Company to engineer a customer's request for customized service.

The Company will notify the customer that additional engineer charges, as set forth in Section 10.1 following, will apply before any additional engineering is undertaken.

10.1.1 Charges for Additional Engineering

The charges for additional Engineering are as follows:

	Additional Engineering <u>Periodş</u>	USOC	First Half Hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>	Each Additional Half hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>
A.	Basic Time, normally schedule working hours, per engineer	AEH	ICB	ICB
В.	Overtime Outside of normally scheduled working hours, per engineer	AEH	ICB	ICB

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President	JUL 10 2000
	TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephan()</u> BU
		SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

10.- ADDITIONA _ ENGINEERING, ETC. (Cont'd)

10.2 Additional Labor

Additional labor is that labor requested by the customer on a given service and agreed to by the Company. The Customer will notify the customer that additional labor charges as set forth in Section 10.2.6 following will apply before any additional labor is undertaken.

10.2.1 Overtime Installation

Overtime installation is tha¹ Company installation effort outside of normally scheduled working hours.

10.2.2 Overtime Repair

Overtime repair is that Company maintenance effort performed outside of normally scheduled working hours.

10.2.3 Standby

Standby includes all time in excess of one-half (1/2) hour during which Company personnel stand by to make cooperative tests with a customer to verify facility repair on a given service.

10.2.4 Testing and Maintenance with Other Companies

Testing and maintenance with other companies is that additional testing maintenance or repair of facilities which connect to facilities of other companies, which is in addition to normal effort required to test, maintain or repair facilities provided solely by the Company.

10.2.5 Other Labor

Other labor is that additional labor not included in Sections 10.2.1 through 10.2.4 preceding, including, but not limited to labor incurred to accommodate a specific customer request that involves only labor which is not covered by another section of this tariff.

		PUB	LIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSI BY:_S	JUL 10 2000 JANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) Lephan() BUU

10.- ADDITIONA_ ENGINEERING, ETC. (Cont'd)

10.2 Additional Labor (Cont'd)

10.2.6 Charges for Additional Labor

A.	Additional Engineering <u>Periods</u> Installation or Repair	<u>USOC</u>	First Half Hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>	Each Additional Half hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>
	 Overtime*, cutside of normally scheduled working hours on a scheduled work day, per technician Premium time, 	ALH	ICB	ICB
	outside of scheduled work day, per technician	ALH	ICB	ICB
Β.	Standby			
	 Basic Time, normally scheduled working hours, per technician 	ALT	None	ICB
	-Overtime*,outsideof normally scheduled working hours on a scheduled work day, per technician	ALT	None	ICB
	- Premium time* outside of scheduled work day, per technician	ALT	None	ICB

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTLICKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> <u>Buy</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

10.- ADDITIONA., ENGINEERING, ETC. (Cont'd)

10.2 Additional Labor (Cont'd)

10.2.6 Charges for Additional Labor (Cont'd)

Additional Engineering <u>Periods</u> C. Testing and Mair tenance with other telephone companies and Other labor	<u>USOC</u>	First Half Hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>	Each Additional Half hour or Fraction <u>Thereof</u>
- Basic Time, normally scheduled working hours, per technician	ALK	ICB	ICB
- Overtime*, outside of normally scheduled working hours on a scheduled work day, per technician	ALK	ICB	ICB
- Premium Time* outside of scheduled work day, per technician	ALK	ICB	ICB

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

10.- ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING, ETC. (Cont'd)

10.3 Miscellaneous Services

- 10.3.1 Maintenance of Service
 - A. When a customer reports a trouble to the Company for clearance and no trouble is found in the Company's facilities, the customer shall be responsible for payment of a deregulated Maintenance of Service Charge for the period of time from when Company personnel are dispatched to the customer's premises to when the work is completed. Failure of Company personnel to find trouble in Company facilities will result in no charge if the trouble is actually in those facilities, but not discovered at the time.
 - B. The customer shall be responsible for payment of a deregulated Maintenance of Service charge when the Company dispatches personnel to the customer's premises, and the trouble is in equipment, inside wire, or communications systems provided by other than the Company or in detariffed CPE or inside wire provided by the Company.

In either (A) or (B) preceding, no credit allowance will be applicable for the interruption involved if the Maintenance of Service charge applies.

The charges for Maintenance of Services are deregulated.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Ball SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES

11.1 Central Office Interconnection

11.1.1 General

Central Office Interconnection (COI) provides a customer with a Transmission Node; i.e., a Central Office Space in the Central Office equipment area and associated power and environmental conditioning to locate certain fiber optic facilities and Transmission Equipment as described in Section 11.1.2.A.2. following. The Company provides a customer a Transmission Node only to connect to certain Company provided Switched Access Services via Cross-Connection Service for Interconnection, described in Section 11.4, following. Central Office space is provided under COI cannot be a point of termination for any other service than those listed in Section 11.4.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

EFFECTIVE:

JUL 10 2000

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038 DUPOLANT TO 507 KAN 2011. SECTION 9 11 Status O BLAD STARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)

- 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions:
 - 1. COI arrangements are available on a first-come, first-served basis subject to the availability of space and facilities in each Central Office. Establishment of the order in which Central Office Space will be given to customers will be dependent upon the date and time that the Company receives a completed COI application. In the event that the customer desire COI in an office where COI is unavailable due to space limitations, the Company's receipt of a completed COI application will establish the priority in which space will be allocated to customers in the event space becomes available at a later date.

The customer will be required to pay fifty percent (50%) of the Central Office Builc Out (COBO) charge when they place their firm order for COI service, twenty-five percent (25%) of the COBO charge half way between the firm order date and the COI service due date and the remaining twenty-five (25%) of the COBO charge when the COBO work is completed.

When the Company receives the customer's firm order for Central Office Space, it will conduct a Pre-Construction Survey for each customer request for Central Office Space to identify all modifications and work required to provide the customer with the requested space. After the Fre-Construction Survey the customer must make itself available for a Company – customer meeting. After the Company – customer meeting, the customer will receive a written proposal for the provision of COI service from the Company. This proposal will detail the associated requirements and the tariffed charges required to meet the customer specified COI request and the expected service date. The customer shall acknowledge acceptance of the tariff charges in this written proposal by signing it and returning a copy to the Company. Nothing herein shall obligate the Company to construct additional space or facilities or alter or diminish

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 2 (1) BY: Stephan() BUU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES (Cont'd)

Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd) 11.1

- 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following Α. provisions (Cont'd)
 - 1. (Cont'd)

Company $\iota\,se$ of space in a Central Office in order to provide Central Office Space to the customer under this Tariff.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand SUJ SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (Cont'd)
 - 2. The Company will provide COI connection to the following, Switched Access and or special access services:
 - a. Switched Transport Connections

Voice Grade Direct Transport or Entrance Facilities or LT-1 (1.544 Mbps) Direct Transport or Entrance Facilities or LT-3 (44.736 Mbps) Direct Transport or Entrance Facilities, for use with the Switched Access Service.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION	1
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE	
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011 SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION	

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (Cont'd)
 - A customer may establish a Transmission Node at each Company Central Office where COI is available to which the customer constructs fiber option interconnection cable(s). The Transmission Node may be established subject to the following provisions:
 - a. The Company reserves the right to determine the configuration of Central Office Space available for a COI arrangement

The customer must utilize the Central Office Space for interconnection to the Company's Switched or Special Access services via the Company's Cross-Connect Service for Interconnection (CCSI).

The customer must comply with all conditions of the Switched or Special Access services to which they interconnect.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KE NTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02033	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand (MAR SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Ccnt'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (Cont'd)
 - 3. (Cont'd)
 - b. The Company may place the customer's Transmission Node in an area or room in which the customer may locate the customer provided Transmission Equipment provided that the Transmission Equipment is used for cross-connection to the services listed in Section 11.1.2(A)(3). This equipment includes but is not limited to:
 - Optical Line Terminating Multiplexers (OLTMs)
 - Central Office Multiplexers
 - Digital Cross-Connect Panels (DSX panels)
 - Optical Cross-Connect Panels (OCX panels)
 - Digital Loop Carrier (utilizing transmission capabilities only)
 - Data Over Voice (DOV) equipment

Customers may locate other basic Transmission Equipment that does not represent a threat to the Company's network within the Company's premises provided that the Transmission Equipment is used for cross-connection to the services listed in Section 11.1.2(A)(3). The customer may not locate equipment to provide enhanced services, switching equipment or equipment to be used for hubbing within the Company's premises.

		PUE	BLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURG BV _S	JUL 10 2000 UANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) 20240 M.) S(1) TARY OF THE SOMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (Cont'd)
 - 3. (Cont'd)
 - c. All customer's Transmission Equipment to be installed in the Transmission Node must comply with the Bellcore Network Equipment Building System (NEBS) Generic Equipment requirements, the Company Central Office environmental and transmission standards, the national Electric Safety Code (NESC) and any statutory (local, state and or federal) and or regulatory requirements in effect at the time of installation or that subsequently become effective.
 - d. The Company will designate floor space within each Central Office which will constitute the Transmission Node. Customer's equipment will be placed in secured cabinets or cages, protected by lock and key, and accessible only by the customer. The Customer will be granted open and free access to its Transmission Node space in the Central Office.
 - e. In addition to floor space, the Company will provide AC convenience power, DC power and DC battery, heat, air conditioning and other environmental supports and generator back-up to the customer's Transmission Node but the Company's obligations is limited to providing such services in substantially the same fashion as it provides such services to itself in the building in which the Transmission Node is located.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMIGSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: <u>Stephane</u> <u>But</u> SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Ccnt'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (*Cont'd*)
 - 3. (Cont'd)
 - f. The Company will permit the customer's employees, agents and contractors, to have access to the areas where the customer's Transmission Node is located at all times, provided that the customer's employees, agents and contractors comply with the policies and practices of the Company pertaining to fire, safety and security.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
		JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011
	124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY Stechard Bar SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Ccnt'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. Central Office Interconnection (COI) will be provided subject to the following provisions (Cont'd)
 - 4. The customer will be responsible for servicing, supplying, repairing, installing and maintaining its Transmission Equipment located in the Central Office Transmission Node.

Additionally at the discretion of the customer, the Company will install the customer provided outside plant entrance cable and riser cable. Hourly rates for such services are described in Section 11.2 following.

- 5. The Customer will be responsible for any extraordinary costs incurred by the Company to prepare the Central Office for the installation of the Customer's Transmission Node and for extraordinary costs to maintain the Central Office for the customer's Transmission Node on a going forward basis. The Company will charge for these costs on a time-sensitive or time and materials basis.
- 6. The Customer will be responsible for notifying the Company of any significant outages within the customer's Transmission Node which could impact any of the services offered by the Company, and provide estimated clearing time for restoral.
- 7. The Company maintains the right to maintain control of underlying facilities for interconnected Switched Access and or Special Access services up to the point(s) of termination.
- 8. The customer is responsible for coordinating with Company to ensure that services are installed in accordance with the service request.
- 9. The customer is responsible for testing, if necessary, with the Company to identify and clear a trouble when the trouble has been sectionalized (isolated) to a customer provided service.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY FFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO SO7 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Ccnt'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. (Cont'd)
 - 10. If the Company determines it is necessary for the customer to move its Transmission Node within a Central Office, the customer is required to do so. All moves required by the Company will be explained to the customer, in writing, prior to the move. The Customer will be responsible for the costs associated with the removal, transport and reinstallation of the customer's equipment.
 - 11. Before beginning delivery, installation, replacement or removal work for equipment and or facilities located within the Transmission Node, the Customer must obtain the Company's written approval of customer proposed scheduling of the work in order to coordinate use of temporary staging areas and other building facilities. The Company may request additional information before granting approval and may require scheduling changes. The customer must submit written plans for equipment to be installed in the transmission Node prior to commencing installation.
 - 12. The Company reserves the right to inspect the customer's completed installation of equipment and facilities occupying a Transmission Node and associated Entrance Conduit and riser Space whenever equipment s installed in order to assure compliance with policies and procedures of the Company pertaining to fire, safety and security as well as other regulations set forth in this Tariff.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:		JUL 10 2000
-	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1)
	124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	BY: Stephand) BW SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Ccnt'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. (Cont'd)
 - 13. The customer shall be permitted to use a portion of the Central Office and loading areas; if available, on a temporary basis during the customer's equipment installation work in the Transmission Node. All equipment deliveries requiring signatures of receipts must be signed by a Customer representative. No Company employee will accept delivery of customer's equipment. The customer is responsible for protecting the Company's equipment and central office wall and flooring with the staging area and along the staging route. The customer wll store equipment and materials within the Transmission Node when work is not in progress. No storing of equipment and materials is overnight will be permitted in the staging area(s). The customer will meet all Company fire, safety and environmental requirements. This temporary staging area will be vacated and delivered to the Company in a broom-clean condition upon completion of the installation work. The Company may assess a cleaning charge for failure to comply with this obligation.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane) BUG SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

- 11.1 Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)
 - 11.1.2 Rules and Regulations (Cont'd)
 - A. (Cont'd)
 - 14. The Company agrees to hold in confidence information provided to it by the customer pursuant to this tariff, and information known to the Company as a result of the interconnection of equipment contained in the Transmission Node to Company facilities and services. Similarly, the customer agrees to hold in confidence information provided to t by the Company pursuant to this Tariff; and information known to the customer as a result of its presence in Company spaces. Ne ther party is obligated to hold in confidence information that:
 - a. was already known to the customer or Company free of any obligation to keep such information confidential;
 - b. was or becomes public available by other than an una thorized disclosure; or
 - c. was rightfully obtained from a third party not obligated to hold such information in confidence.
 - 15. The Company is not liable for any act or omission of the Customer in the furnishing of service to the customer's patrons.
 - 16. The customer's employees, agents and or contractors may only work on, modify, or have access to the customer's equipment or facilities.

		PUBL	IC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSU BY:	JUL 10 2000 ANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) Cohan() BCCP TARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.1 Central Office Interconnection

- 11.1.3 Rate Categories
 - A. Order Charge

The Order Charge rate category provides for the processing of the COI application associated with a request for Central Office Floor Space within each Central Office and, provides for preliminary work needed to determine if the Central Office Floor Space requested in the customer's COI application is available. This charge is not dependent upon the amount of floor space requested. The Order Charge will be applied once per COI application and is a non-recurring charge.

B. Central Office Floo⁻ Space

The Central Office Floor Space rate category provides for nominal square foot increments of floor space located in the Central Office equipment areas in Company designated Central Offices used and occupied by the customer for COI. The Central Office Floor Space rate will include the associated environmental supports such as heating, AC power and air conditioning equivalent to the Central Office equipment environment at that location.

C. Central Office Build Out

The Central Office Build Out (COBO) rate category provides for modifications or additions that must be made to the Central Office to accommodate a customer's Transmission Node. The COBO rate category is composed of two non-recurring rate elements: the initial 100sq. ft. COBO charge and the additional 100 sq. f. COBO charge. Charges for extraordinary costs incurred by the Company to prepare the Central Office for the installation of the customer's Transmission Node are added to the COBO charge.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() BUY SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.2 Rates and Charges

1. Central Office Interconnection

	USOC	<u>Monthly</u>	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
A. Order Charge -Per COI Application	SP1S0	N/A	ICB
B. Central Office Floor Space	SP1ST	ICB	N/A
C. Cable Vault Splicing -Per Initial Splice Only -Per Subsequent Splice	SP1S1 SP1S2	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
D. Splice Testing -Per Initial Splice Test -Per Subsequent Splice Test	SP1T1 SP1T2	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
E. Cable Pulling From Manhole: to Cable vault -Per First Foot -Per Additional Foot	SP1V1 SP1VA	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
F. Cable Pulling from CableVault to Transmission Node -Per First Foot -Per Additional Foot	SP1W1 SP1W A	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
G. Riser Space -Per Foot	SP1CB	ICB	N/A

		PUBLIC SERVICE CO	DMMISSICM
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 20 PURSUANT TO BOT KA SECTION 9 (1) BV Stockard of the comm	R 5:011,

11.2 Rates and Charges

1. Central Office Interconnection (Cont'd)

	USOC	Monthly	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
H. Entrance Conduit -Per Inner Duct Foot	SP1CA	ICB	N/A
I. Power Consumption -Per Fuse AMP	SP1PA	ICB	N/A
J. Power Delivery -Per Power Lead	SP1PP	N/A	ICB
 K. 200 Conductor Electrical Block Cross-Connection Block -Per Block 	EPJCX	ICB	N/A
L. Digital Cross-Connect Panel (DSX) -Per DSX-3 Termination			
(1 DS3 termination) -Per DSX-1 Panel	DXZD3	ICB	N/A
(Up to 56 DS1 terminations)	DXZD1	ICB	N/A
 M. Optical Cross-Connect Panel (OCX) -Per OCX Panel Segment 	SP1PZ	ICB	N/A

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	<u></u>	JUL 10 2000
	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) BY <u>STREAM</u> OF THE COMMISSION

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES (Cont'd)

11.2 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2. Virtual Optical Interconnection Service

		USOC	<u>Monthly</u>	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
Α.	Service Order Charge -Per Order	SP1S0	N/A	ICB
В.	Optical Line 1. Entrance Facility -Per Foot	SP1EF	ICB	N/A
	2. Riser -Space Per Foot -Per Fiber Termination	SP1RC SP1RT	ICB ICB	N/A N/A
	3. Cable Vault Splicing -Per Initial Splice Only -Per Subsequent Splice:	SP1S1 SP1S2	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
	 4. Splice Testing -Per Initial Splice Test -Per Subsequent Splice: Test 	SP1T1 SP1T2	N/A N/A	ICB ICB

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephane BU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES (Cont'd)

11.2 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2. Virtual Optical Interconnection Service (Cont'd)

		USOC	<u>Monthly</u>	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
B.	Optical Line <i>(Cont'd)</i> 5. Cable Pulling From Manhole to Cable Vault -Per First Foot -Per Additional Foot	SP1V1 SP1VA	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
	 Cable Pulling from Cable Vault to LGX Panel -Per First Foot -Per Additional Foot 	SP1W1 SP1WA	N/A N/A	ICB ICB
	 Diverse Riser -Per floor traversed 	SP1RS	N/A	ICB
C.	Equipment Bay -Per 7' Bay Installed (Company provided \ installed) -Per 7' Bay Installed	OMUAE	ICB	ICB
	Customer provided \ installed pre- packaged)	OMUAS	ICB	N/A

			PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	r. F	JUL 10 2000 SECTION AND JULI MORE AND SECTION

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES (Cont'd)

11.2 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2. Virtual Optical Interconnection Service (Cont'd)

		<u>USOC</u>	Monthly	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
D.	Project Management Fee			
	-Per Initial 7' Bay Installed on initial or Subsequent Order -Per Additional 7' Bay Instal·ed on Initial	NRBPU	N/A	ICB
	or Subsequent Order	NRBPU	N/A	ICB
	-Per Initial Shelf Installed on Subsequent Order -Per Additional Shelf Installed on Same	NRBPW	N/A	ICB
	Subsequent Order	NRBPX	N/A	ICB
	-Per Bay Rearrangement and or Miscellaneous Work	NRBPZ	N/A	ICB
E.	Power Consumption -Per Fuse AMP	SP1PN	ICB	N/A
F.	Power Delivery -Per 7' Bay Installed	SP1PP	N/A	ICB

		PU{	BHC SERVICE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:	BLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PURS BY: _S	JUL 10 2000 UANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) Hephani Sur

11.- INTERCONNECTION SERVICES (Cont'd)

11.2 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

2. Virtual Optical Interconnection Service (Cont'd)

	USOC	<u>Monthly</u>	Non- recurring <u>Charge</u>
 G. 200 Conductor Electrical Block Cross-Connection Block -Per 200 Conductor Electrical Cross-Connection Block 	EPJCX	ICB	N/A
H. Digital Cross-Connect Panel (DSX) -Per DSX-3 Termination			
(1 DS3 termination) -Per DSX-1 Panel	DXZD3	ICB	N/A
(Up to 56 DS1 termination s)	DXZD1	ICB	N/A
I. Optical Cross-Connect Pane (OCX) -Per OCX Panel Segment	SP1PZ	ICB	N/A
J. Digital Timing Source -Per Timing Circuit	SP1TV	ICB	N/A
K. Through-Connect-Per DSX-1 to DSX-1-Per OCX to OCX	CVXDX CVXDX	ICB ICB	ICB ICB

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stephand Buy SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

12. DESCRIPTION AND APPLICATION OF RATES AND CHARGES

12.1 Usage Rates

Usage rates for switched access service are rates that apply: (1) on a per access minute basis when Direct Access; (2) on ϵ per call blocked basis beyond the blocking threshold for Network Blocking; (3) on a per query basis for 800 Database Queries. All charges are accumulated on a monthly basis. Rates for these services are found in the Rate Attachment.

12.2 Monthly Rates

Monthly rates are flat recurring trates that apply each month or fraction thereof that a chargeable optional feature of basic service element is provided. For billing and prorating purposes, each month is considered to have 30 days.

12.3 Nonrecurring Charges

Nonrecurring charges are one-time charges that apply for specific work activity. The types of non-recurring charges are as follows:

12.3.1 Access Order Charge

The Access Order Charge applies to all Customer requests for new switched access service, and for additions, changes, or rearrangements to existing service. It is applied on a per order basis to each order received by the Company, and is in addition to any other applic able charges as set forth in this and other sections of this tariff.

\$150.00

The Access Order Charge does not apply:

- to administrative changes;
- when a change in a pending order does not result in the cancellation of the pending order and the issuance of a new order;
- when a Company initiated network reconfiguration requires a Customer's existing access service to be reconfigured.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Street, Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	JUL 10 2000 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1) BY Stechand BLU SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

12. DESCRIPTION AND APPLICATION OF RATES AND CHARGES (Cont'd.)

12.3 Nonrecurring Charges (Cont'd.)

12.3.2 Installation of Service

Non-recurring charges apply to each Direct Access service installed. This charge applies only when the capacity ordered requires the installation or activation of an additional trunk(s) which is uniquely identified for the sole use of the ordering Customer.

*Provided on an Individual Case Basis

12.3.3 Service Rearrangements

All changes to existing services other than changes involving administrative activities will be treated as the discontinuance of the existing service and an installation of a new service. Installation charges as described in 12.3.2. above apply. Changes and additions to existing services which are necessary due to Company initiated network reconfigurations will be made without charge to the Customer.

Administrative changes include the following:

- change of Customer name;
- change of Custor er or Customer's end user premises address when the change of address is not the result of a physical relocation of equipment;
- change in billing data (name, address, contract name or telephone number);
- change of agency authorization;
- change of customer circuit identification;
- change of billing account number;
- change of Customer test line number;
- change of Customer or Customer's end user contact name or telephone number;
- change of jurisdiction.

		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE
ISSUED:		EFFECTIVE: JUL 10 2000
ISSUED BY:	Michael Angi - President TOTALINK OF KENTUCKY, LLC 124 Grove Stree Suite 220 Franklin, MA 02038	PUHOUANT TO BOY KAR 5011. SECTION 9(1) BY SUBETARY OF THE COMMISSION